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After all, 2014 was a year that inspired a lot (_)_1-' h
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Look at the Philippine peso, it would be a challen;
a currency with wider smiles than ours. Taking
our fun-loving Philippine peso, we soughtto i
everywhere. At the turn of every page, every ph
inspiring story, we put in what we hope to

smiles. After all, they are free, but invaluable

Moving forward, we remain dedicated _'t'o';_é_‘ ric
lives of both COL customers and employees, lifte
trust and smiles. S



To be the best and most trusted
financial services provider for Filipino
investors.

To provide unparalleled service to
our customers by empowering them
with  knowledge,  tools and
wealth-building programs to help

achieve their financial goals.

VIS 1T O N

s O N

To provide a superior investing
customer experience towards building
genuine wealth.

To provide the most conducive and
rewarding work environment for our
employees.

To provide shareholders a sustainable
return on capital.
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Dear COL Customer,

The year 2014 was a huge one for the Philippine
stock market, which yielded a return of over
20% to the investing public. The question in
your mind, | guess, is “How can | still make
money in the stock market in 20157”

The simple answer is to STAY INVESTED.

Why? The coming years will see the rise of
Asian economies, with various indicators
supporting a positive market outlook. In the
Philippines, the flow of foreign investments is
expected to continue, while the equity market
is likely to remain bullish. Our country will
sustain robust economic growth, driven by
higher consumer spending, a young working
population, and a boost in infrastructure
spending to 5% of gross domestic product.

It has been my strong belief that all Filipinos can
lead richer lives with the proper mindset towards
investing. This vision is embodied in COL's
relationship with each customer. Paying close
attention to your needs and goals, we continue to
offer financial education, online tools, and quality
market research to help you make smart
investment decisions.

Throughout the years, | have often said that the
key to achieving financial independence is
understanding and applying the three basic
laws of money. First, pay yourself consciously
and invest 20% of what you make. Second, be
sure to know the companies or businesses you
are investing in. Third, when you make money,
do not spend it. Re-invest it.

It is inspiring how many of our customers have
remained committed to practicing these laws
to achieve their long-term financial goals. We
have seen the difference that COL has made in
the lives of our customers in the last 15 years -
from being able to send their kids to school, to
putting up their own businesses, pursuing their
life-long dreams, and gaining the ability to help
others. These personal milestones inspire us
to continuously strive to build a better
investing experience for all our customers.

In 2015, we will take our relationship further by
being more than just your trusted stockbroker,
but also your genuine wealth-building partner.
The best is yet to come, so keep smiling!

Founder 'and Chairman




2014 continued to be a great year for
COL as we celebrated our 15th anniversary.
We look back with pride to a decade
and a half of sincere dedication to help
Filipinos lead richer lives.

We have gone a long way in the past 15
years. We provided a reliable online
platform equipped with tools to make it
easier for every Filipino to invest in the
stock market. We conducted numerous
seminars that were open to both COL
clients and the public. All these efforts
are in line with our advocacy towards
improving the level of financial literacy
among Filipinos, particularly by helping
them understand why and how they
should invest in the stock market.

In 2014, we invited all of our customers
to share with us how COL has affected

their lives. In a span of only 3 weeks, we
received 650 testimonies from clients
who shared how COL has helped
them in their journey towards richer
lives. We in the COL Management
Team consider these stories as our
greatest reward. They inspire us to
work harder every day and to find
more ways to make it easier for
Filipinos to meet their financial dreams.

After 15 years, it is encouraging to
see that our efforts have borne
fruit. COL’s initiatives to educate
investors, big and small, have led
to life-changing results. The smiles
on the faces of our customers is an
affirmation of our commitment to
continue Delivering Richer Lives.

“Seeing smiles
customers is ar




CLIENT BASE (NET)

2010 15,345
2011 28,067

CLIENT EQUITY

2010 11,962
2011 16,447

CLIENT BASE HITS 112,000

ne of the criteria we use to measure
our performance is the growth in the
number of customers and their assets.
In 2014, we exceeded the 100,000
customer mark as we grew our client
base by 37% year-on-year (Y/Y) to end
the year with more than 112,000 clients.
This is no small feat considering that the
number of investors in the stock market
is currently less than a million.

2012 46,166
2013 82,476

2014 112.827 CUSTOMERS

2012 34,359
2013 47,942

2014 PHP 56.7 BILLION

While most mutual fund companies
suffered from weak sales and net
redemptions in 2014, the value of our
clients” equity continued to grow, increasing
by 18.3% Y/Y to PHP 56.7 billion. In 2014,
we saw PHP 12 billion in net new flows
from our clients across all segments,
a sign of continued trust as they
invest more in the stock market
through COL.

TOUCHING LIVES OF MORE FILIPINOS

37%

18.3%



A RESILIENT PERFORMANCE

Due to the expansion of our client base,
COL performed more resiliently
compared to other stockbrokers who
were hurt significantly by the double-digit
drop in value turnover at the Philippine
Stock Exchange (PSE).

While value turnover in the PSE fell by
16.3% Y/Y, COL's figure slid by just 5.4%.
As a result, our market share in terms of
total value turnover increased to 4.1% in
2014 from 3.6% in 2013, while our market
share in terms of value turnover among
local investors reached a new record high
of 8.2%. Our ranking among PSE brokers
also improved to 8th from 9th the previ-
ous year, while we retained our position
as the No. 1 online stock broker in terms
of transaction volume.

Despite the drop in market turnover,
commission revenues declined by only

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE RANKING (VALUE)

2014

2013

6.9% Y/Y to PHP 504 million in 2014.
Consolidated revenues went down by
only 4.0% to PHP 712 million, as the
growth in our asset base allowed interest
income to increase even as interest rates
remained low.

Moreover, we continued to manage cost.
In 2014, fixed operating expenses
increased by only 5.5% Y/Y to PHP 234
million. As a result, we recorded operating
profits of PHP 371 million on a recurring
basis, down by only 3.8% despite the
highly leveraged nature of the stock
brokerage business. Our core net income
hit PHP 293 million, down by only 3.6%.

Net income, meanwhile, reached PHP 262
million, representing a decrease of 13.6%
Y/Y. This was largely due to the booking
of a PHP 30 million one-time expense
related to the exercise of stock options.




Our balance sheet remains strong. Total assets
grew by 32% Y/Y to PHP 6.4 billion as our cash
position increased by 45% to PHP 4.6 billion,
making us financially stronger and better
equipped to service the needs of Filipino
investors. Meanwhile, stockholders” equity was

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’
ASSETS POSITION EQUITY

GREW BY 32% Y/Y INCREASED TO
TO PHP 6.4BIL 45% 10 pHp 4651 | FLAT AT PHP 1.3BIL
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KEY INITIATIVES platform. We joined |-Remit's Be FIT
Forum meant to encourage Filipinos
abroad to become financially intelligent.

As our business continues to grow, we This included visits to Taiwan, Australia,
remain committed to putting the New Zealand, and Singapore.

interest of our clients first and foremost

year after year. In line with this, we Leading this effort is, none other than,
have embarked on a number of initiatives our Chairman, Mr. Edward Lee, who
to maintain our position as the market conducted most of these roadshows
leader, and to deepen our relationship with various groups and association
with our customers. almost every week, including weekends.
Firstis our initiative to expand our client In 2014, we opened COL's first
base. We remain determined to Investor Center in Makati, making us
increase financial literacy through our more accessible to interested market
educational campaigns by establishing participants. Attending investor seminars
strong working relationships  with and opening accounts are now more
various organizations, companies and convenient for clients based in the
universities. Makati central business district and

southern Luzon.
At the same time, our partnership with

[-Remit Inc., the largest non-bank I'm pleased to say that because of
Filipino-owned remittance company, these efforts, we have helped the stock
has enabled us to participate in several exchange extend its market reach,
international roadshows. This has making the financial sector more
allowed us to reach a wider audience of inclusive. Out of the 30,000 new
overseas Filipinos and help them invest customers we added in 2014, 96% were
in Philippine stocks through COL's first-time investors in the stock market.



MORE CUSTOMER TOUCH - POINTS

Secondly, we enhanced our customers’
experience by increasing our touch-points
with them. 2014 was a year of customer
engagement as we put greater focus on
our digital channels outside of our
website, namely Twitter, Youtube, and
Facebook. The number of our followers
more than doubled across all platforms.
We have launched live Twitter sessions
to facilitate direct interaction with our
clients and offer further guidance and
support to their investments. Sacial
media has also become a platform for
COL Research to spread market
information and research ideas to our
customers without having to log on to
our system.

COL’s YouTube channel has also been
updated with videos of our previous
events and market briefings, allowing us
to reach a wider audience, particularly
those who were unable to attend our
live educational events. Our Facebook
page has been instrumental in sharing
major updates about the company’s

activities and developments. As of
end-2014, the page has grown to a
highly engaged community of over
30,000. These platforms have allowed
us to reach out to our growing customer
base in a more cost-effective way, while
spreading further the wealth of
information that has been made readily
available to our clients.

With the growing number of smartphone
users in the country, we continue to
build more infrastructure to make
investing easier and more convenient.
We launched the COL Mobile App on
Apple i0S, providing clients quick
access to our trading platform and
allowing them to invest anytime,
anywhere.

For the first time, COL also brought
together leaders of the SM Group to
personally discuss the strengths and
opportunities of the various SM listed
companies to COL clients based in key
cities in the country, namely Manila,
Cebu and Davao. The event was made
possible by a partnership with SM
Investments Corp., which provided the
venue to host these events.




TECHNICAL UPGRADES

In our 15-year history, we have consistently
focused on providing great value to our
customers, in line with our goal of building
lasting relationships which entail, among
others, offering a consistently high quality
of service.

To address the increase in the volume of
orders and demand for market information,
several upgrades were undertaken to
maintain and enhance the performance
of our trading platform. The capacity of our
web servers was increased by 60% to
handle existing and new users of the
site, while our bandwidth was expanded
by 40%. The capacity of our order servers
was also hiked by 25% while that of

our market data servers was increased
by 50%. Our existing equipment was
upgraded with the latest technology,
accompanied by a newly acquired
firewall hardware, to further improve
efficiency and intensify overall security.

In 2014, the average number of unique
users of COL’s website grew by over
50% to 30,000, while the number of
log-ins hit a peak of 40,000 in
November. Despite massive growth in
the number of users, we are proud to
say that our platform was able to
achieve 99.7% reliability, thanks to the
significant investments made on our IT
infrastructure.

+40%

+60%
WEB SERVERS

BANDWIDTH

+25%
ORDER SERVERS

+50%

MARKET DATA

SERVERS




THE FIRST FUND SUPERMARKET

As we build our long-term relationship
with our customers, we are excited to
roll out the first fund supermarket in the
Philippines, our mutual fund distribution
service named “COL Fund Source”.

COL clients can now access various
professionally managed funds, including
money —market funds, bond -funds,
balanced funds, and equity funds,
through the COL platform. As of today,
a total of six mutual fund companies,
which together account for 92.1% of the
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TOTAL ASSETS
UNDER
MANAGEMENT
OF MUTUAL
"UNDINDUSTRY

assets under management of the
mutual fund industry, have agreed to
make their funds available on the COL
website.

Not only that, we will also provide tools
that will allow investors to compare the
various available funds while accessing
independent research on each fund at
the same time. This puts them in a
better position to pick and choose funds
that will best suit their needs.
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RICHER LIVES, HAPPY SMILES

The first 15 years of COL’s history
have been very rewarding. But we
will not stop finding ways to make it
easier for more Filipinos to invest.

The strength of our leadership is
rooted in the relationships we have
built with our stakeholders. Our Richer
Life Campaign was a clear testament
to how COL has successfully touched
the lives of its customers. I'm proud
to have been a witness to how far we
have come. Not only did we shape

the industry, we also gave people the
opportunity to achieve financial
freedom through their investments.
COL has given Filipinos reason to be
all smiles.

As we navigate 2015, our focus remains
to be our customers and helping them
achieve their financial goals. We are
excited to take this company to the next
level as we become their partner in
building genuine wealth.



At a glance, COL’s business performance in
2014 seems less rosy. Behind these figures,
however, are stories of triumph as well as
encouraging prospects of better days ahead
with the surging Philippine market.

COL’s top and bottom lines for 2014 were
lower compared to 2013, with consolidated
revenues down by almost 4% and net income
by 13.6%. Consolidated revenues for 2014 hit
PHP 711.5 million compared with the previous
year’s PHP 740.9 million, while net income
stood at PHP 262.3 million, also a decline
compared with PHP 303.6 million in 2013.

However, the decline in net income was
largely due to the booking of a PHP 30
million expense related to the exercise of

stock options, and is non-recurring in nature.

Poor market conditions during the first half
of the year also dragged full year numbers.
However, COL's operating results actually
improved during the second half of the year
as market conditions improved. For
instance, during the fourth quarter of the
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year, Philippine revenues essentially
increased by a hefty 41.3% to PHP 181.1
million, largely driven by an increase of
63.7% in commissions. Core income also
jumped to PHP 43.4 million from PHP 6.6
million.

There were ,likewise, a number of positive
developments in 2014 that excite us as we
look forward to COL's future:

In 2014, we exceeded the 100,000 customer
mark; we ended the year at more than
112,000 customers. This is a testament to
the strength of our brand among Filipinos
looking to achieve financial freedom.

The value of our clients” equity continued to
grow, increasing by 18.3% year-on-year to
PHP 56.7 billion. In 2014, we saw PHP 12
billion in net new flows from our clients across
all segments. Due to the continuous growth of
our client base, COL was resilient and
performed better compared with other stock-
brokers who were significantly hurt by the
double-digit drop in value turnover in the PSE.




Despite the substantial growth in our client base, we
were able to contain the increase in our fixed
operating expenses at 5.5%. In fact, this already
includes start-up costs related to our fund distribution
business.

While value turnover in the PSE fell by 16.3%, COL's
value turnover fell by only 5.4% year-on-year. As a
result, our market share in terms of value turnover
among local investors reached a new record high of
8.2%.

COL*srank in the PSE went up to 8th from 9th in the
previous year. We also retained our rank as the No.
1 online stockbreker in terms of transaction volume.

COL'’s balance sheet also remainsverwhealthy. Total
assets grew by 32% to PHP 6.4 billion in 2014 from
PHP 4.8 billion the previous year. This was largely
due to the growth in our cash position, by 45% to
PHP 4.6 billion in-2014 from PHP 3.2 billion in 2013.

All these developments make us very optimistic over
the long-term prospeets of the company.
ey _ . r
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ASH POSITION GREW

Not withstanding the decline in our profits, we will
still distribute PHP 237.3 million in cash dividends
equivalent to PHP 0.50 per share to you our loyal
shareholders.

Given our increasingly affluent economy, we expect
a continued expansion in our client base. This, in our
opinion, is a stronger indicator of the sustainability
of our profitable  operations. As we have always
said, “our clients’ success is our success.” This gives
us.great reason to keep smiling.

EQUITY
year-on-year
to PHP 56.7
Billion

=
INCREASE IN E

4.8 \]

billion

6 H

fixed operating
expenses
contained at




EDWARD K. LEE

Founder and Chairman

Edward K. Lee, 60, Filipino, is a Bachelor of Science in
Industrial Management Engineering graduate of De La
Salle University. He is concurrently the Founder and
Chairman of the Board of COL since 1999, COL
Securities (HK) Limited since 2001, Citisecurities, Inc.
since 1986, and Caylum Trading Institute since 2013.
He has also been the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the CWC Group of Companies which include
CWC Development, Inc., Barrington Carpets, Inc,
Citimex, Inc. and CWC International, Inc. for the past 37
years. Mr. Lee served as a nominee of Citisecurities,
Inc. to the Manila Stock Exchange and presently to the
Philippine Stock Exchange. He was elected as one of
the Governors of the Philippine Stock Exchange and
was the Chairman of the Computerization committee of
the Manila Stock Exchange and PSE in 1994. He went
on to become a member of the Board of Directors of A.
Soriano Corporation serving for two terms. Mr. Lee
was also nominated to the 2007 Entrepreneur of the
Year Philippines by Ernst & Young.
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CONRADO F. BATE
President and Chief
Executive Officer
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Conrado F. Bate, 52, Filipino, is a Bachelor of Arts in

Economics and Bachelor of Science in Marketing

Management graduate of De La Salle University. He is

currently the President and Chief Executive Officer of

COL. He has extensive experience in the Philippine

stock brokerage and fund management industry. Prior

positions that he held include: Vice President of JP

Morgan Philippines in 2002; President and CEO of

Abacus Securities Corporation from 1995-1997; and

Vice President of Fund Management Division of

Philamlife Insurance Company from 1990 to 1995. Mr.

Bate was a member of the Board of Directors of the

Philippine Stock Exchange (2005-2006) and served as

its Chairman of the Investor Education Committee and g
Member of the Legislative Committee. He was an N..-u-"
independent director of the ATR Kim Eng Asset »-n"""'ﬁ-t =
Management from 2005 to 2010 and serves - in thew
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ALEXANDER C. YU

Vice-Chairman --
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Alexander C. Yu, 59, Filipino, is a Bachelor of Science peszl | 1
in Mechanical Engineering graduate of De La Salle et
University. He is currently the Vice Chairman of COL o
since 1999 and the Vice Chairman and Treasurer of
(Citisecurities, Inc. since 1986. He is also currently a
Director of COL Securities (HK) Limited since 2001,
elected as Director of Caylum Trading Institute in 2013
and also of Winner Industrial Corp. for more than 10
years. He is the proprietor of Trans-Asia General
Merchandise and in 1997, served as a Director of A.
Soriano Corporation.
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HERNAN G. LIM

Director
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Hernan G. Lim, 62, Filipino, is currently the
President of Hoc Po Feeds Corporation and the )
Executive Vice President of HGL Development
Corporation.  Mr. Lim is a Director of Claylu N
Trading Institute since 2013, and has also be
Director of Citimex, Inc., Citisecurities
Development, Inc., Barrington Cary
CWC Industries, Inc. for more 10
He holds a Bachelor of Sci ~/
and Communicati ;"é‘
- of Santo Tomas. He
- Course at th
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PAULWELL HAN

Director

Paulwell Han, 55, Chinese, is a graduate of
Business Finance at San Francisco State University,
USA. He is currently the Director and General
Manager of different corporations located in Hong
Kong namely: Etta Trading Company Limited, Yee
Ting Tong Company Limited, Tecworld Investment
Co., Ltd.,, Silver Jubilee Co., Ltd., and Sunning
Restaurant.

WELLINGTON C. YU

Director

Wellington C. Yu, 71, Filipino, finished his BS
Chemical Engineering at De La Salle University in
1965 and his MBA and MS Chemical Engineering
from the University of Pittsburgh. From 1973 to
1985, he was the Dean of the College of Business
and Economics of De La Salle University and of the
Graduate School of Business from 1981 to 1984.
He was conferred the title of Dean Emeritus in the
College of Business and Economics. He was the
Senior Vice President of Tropical Rent-A-Car in
Hawaii from 1986 to 1990 & President of Suntrips,
Inc. of San Jose, California from 1990 to 1997. In
2012, Xavier School San Juan awarded the “Exemplary
Alumnus” title to Dean Yu. He is presently the
Dean of the College at Philippine Cultural College in
Manila.




RAYMOND C. YU

Director

Raymond C. Yu, 61, Filipino, is a Bachelor of
Science in Commerce graduate of De La Salle
University in 1974. He is currently the President of
Winner Industrial Corporation, elected as a director
of Caylum Trading Institute in 2013, and a director
of more than 16 years of the following corporations:
Citisecurities, Inc.,, CWC Development, Inc.,
Barrington Carpets, Inc., Citimex, Inc. and CWC
International, Inc.

\

CATHERINE L. ONG

Director & Treasurer
Chief Financial Officer

l
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Catherine L. Ong, 63, Filipino, is the President of
Citisecurities, Inc. and Executive Vice President
and Treasurer of CWC Group of Companies, which
includes CWC Industries, Inc., Barrington Carpets,
Inc., Citimex, Inc. and CWC International Corporation.
She has held the latter position for more than 20
years now. She has extensive experience in
banking, having held various positions in Metropoli
Bank and Trust Company (Metrobank). She
Assistant Vice President and Area S
Metrobank and served as a Dire
subsidiary, Pan Philippine
now known Philippi fe)
(graduated fror ?5 /./‘/
vy Withﬁ 3 ?.‘:" i

~ Administrati
e

LI




e |
=
Ll

it
Jl ith:

)
il

i

JOEL LITMAN

Director

Joel Litman, 44, American, was elected as director
on August 12, 2011. Litman is currently Chief
Investment Strategist and Managing Director of
Valens Securities, Inc. headquartered in New York
City. He serves as Chairman and CEO of Valens
Credit LLC, Valens Equities, and the Institute of
Strategy & Valuation. Previously, he held
Director/Manager positions at Credit Suisse First
Boston, Deloitte Consulting, and American
Express. He is co-author of the book, DRIVEN:
Business Strategy, Human Actions, and the
Creation of Wealth and has published in Harvard
Business Review. Professor Litman is on faculty at
Hult International Business School and has lectured
at Harvard and other MBA programs. He is
Chairman of the Foundation for Socioeconomic
Advancement focused on philanthropic efforts,
particularly in the Philippines. He is a Certified
Public Accountant in the United States, a member
of the Global CFA Institute, received his B.S.
Accountancy at DePaul University and his
MBA/MM from the Kellogg Graduate School of
Management at Northwestern University.

MANUEL S. ESTACION

Independent Director

Manuel S. Estacion, 70, Filipino, is a Bachelor of
Science in Commerce graduate of San Beda
College. He is presently engaged by The Hong Kong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation (HSBC) as the
Bank Representative in the remaining labor related
cases pending in Court. He previously served
HSBC in various capacities and was Vice President
Human Resources from 1996 to 1999 after which
he acted as a Consultant to HSBC prior to his
present engagement. Mr. Estacion is a Charter
Member and a Director of the Rotary Club of
Ortigas Center for the Rotary Year 2014-2015. He is
at present a Director of Vynex Signs Philippines, Inc.




Khoo Boo Boon, 56, Malaysian, has extensive
experience in commodities trading, stock trading,
advertising, marketing research and corporate
management and has held senior executive
positions in the Asean region. He currently runs his
own management consulting firm, Knowledge-Based
Business Intelligence and Consulting (KBBIC) and
sits on the Board of Directors of GTF Worldwide
Philippines, and Geka Property Holdings Inc.,
Bethel Home Holdings Inc. Mr. Khoo is an alumnus
of the Asian Institute of Management where he
earned a Masters degree in Development
Management in 1990 as Canadian International
Development Agency (CIDA) Fellow.

18



I

)

e e e e
¥ J

)

i

CAESAR A. GUERZON

Corporate Secretary, SVP and Head of
Compliance, Legal, Human Resource
and Administration Departments

Caesar A. Guerzon, 65, Filipino, is concurrently a
Director of COL Securities (HK) Limited and the
Corporate  Secretary of Citisecurities, Inc., CWC
International, Inc, CWC Industrial Corporation and
Barrington Carpets, Inc. He is also the Chairman of the
Board of the Rural Bank of Sta. Maria, llocos Sur, Inc.,,
and serves as President of the Board of Trustees of
COG — Makati, Inc. and Secretary to the Sangguniang
Barangay of Bel-Air, Makati City. He was member of
the Governance Committee of the Philippine Stock
Exchange and the Legislative Committee of the
Philippine Association Securities Brokers & Dealers. Mr.
Guerzon finished his Bachelor of Science in Foreign
Service in 1972 and Bachelor of Laws in 1976 at the
University of the Philippines and was admitted to the
Philippine Bar in 1977. He is a licensed Certified Securities
Representative and a member of the Integrated Bar of
the Philippines.

NIKOS J. BAU llSEA

Vice President and Chief Technology
Officer

Nikos J. Bautista, 46, Filipino, is the Chief Technology
Officer of COL. He is also a consultant and a committee
member for the New Trading System Project of the
PSE which was launched successfully mid-2010-andfor
various-projects of the PDEX. He was with the I.T.
Department of the PSE as manager, in charge of all the
|.T-related activities of the Exchange from 1993-1997.
In 1997, he joined Computershare, an Australian-based
software development Company specializing in trading
systems wherein he took charge of all technical aspects
of the business. In 2000, he put up a software
development company, FINATECHS, INC., where he
served as its President and Chief Executive Officer until
2003. Mr. Bautista is a graduate of De La Salle University
with a Bachelor of Computer Science Degree and
Masteral Courses in Computer Science.
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JUAN G. BARREDO

Vice President for Sales and
Customer Support

Juan “Juanis” G. Barredo, 47, Filipino, Vice President of
Sales & Customer Support for COL, manages the
day-to-day operations of COL's Business Center, its
Sales division as well as its Customer Service division.
He also spearheads the COL Investor Seminar Series,
the flagship investor education program of the Company,
geared to empower COL customers and the investing
public to build their knowledge base through a series of
progressive stock market training sessions so that they
can confidently invest in the Philippine Stock Market.
He has addressed an audience of over 50,000 people
nationwide in the last five years with topics ranging
from the basics of stock market investing to introductory
and advanced technical analysis seminars. Mr. Barredo
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Philosophy from De
La Salle University in 1990 and is a Certified Securities
Representative.
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LORENA E. VELARDE

Vice President and Financial Controller

Lorena E. Velarde, 44, Filipino, was appointed as
Financial Controller of COL in 2010 after having served
as the Company's Head of Accounting from 2001 to
2009. She is concurrently the Compliance Officer of
Citisecurities, Inc. She was previously the Accounting
Department Head of Citisecurities, Inc. and Citisec
Asset Management, Inc., the fund manager for Citisec
Growth and Income Fund, Inc. Before that, she was a
Senior Associate in-charge at SyCip Gorres Velayo &
Co. which provided her extensive training in tax,
accounting and financial reporting. Ms. Velarde
graduated from the University of Santo Tomas with a
Bachelor of Science Degree in Commerce Major in
Accounting in 1991 and became a Certified Public
Accountant on the same year.
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Vice President and Head of Research
Department

April Lynn L. Tan, 39, Filipino, has been the head of
COL'’s Research Team since 2003. She has been
doing equities research since 1996 when she
joined the research team of Citisecurities, Inc. Ms.
Tan holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Management Engineering from the Ateneo de
Manila University. She is a Certified Securities
Representative and in 2000, earned the right to use
the Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation.
She is currently the President of the CFA Society of
the Philippines and the Chair of its Investment
Research Challenge committee.

GERALD T. CHUA

General Manager,
COL Hong Kong, Ltd.

Gerald Chua, 38, Filipino, is currently the General
Manager of CitisecOnline.com Hong Kong, Ltd. In
2001, he was part of the team, which established
the COL Hong Kong office. Today, he remains as
its manager, overseeing the company’s day-to-day
operations.



MELISSA O. NG

Assistant Vice President & Head of
Operations

Melissa O. Ng, 42, Chinese, graduated with a
degree of Bachelor of Science in Applied Economics
and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business
Management from De La Salle University. She
earned her MBA (Silver Medalist) from De La Salle
University in 2000. She has been with the Company
since 2007 and has previous banking experience
from Security Bank and Union Bank of the Philippines.
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JOHN GATMAYTAN
& GEORGE WONG

Heads of Private Clients Group

John Gatmaytan, 49, Filipinor,r is_currently the
Joint-Head of the Private_Clients—Group of COL

banking, fund raising, distribution and portfolio
management, having organized and led successful
teams in various top-tier financial services companies.
Prior to COL, he was a Vice President of ATR-Kim
Eng Securities Philippines from 2000 to 2009; Vice
President and Head of Sales of DBP-Daiwa Securities
Philippines Inc. from 1995-1997; Vice President
and Head of Sales of Philippine Asia Equity Securities
Inc. (formerly First Pacific Securities) from
1992-1995. He has 25 years of industry experience
since he started with Citicorp Vickers in 1986.

George Wong, 43, Filipino, is currently the
Joint-Head of the Private Clients Group of COL
Financial Group. He has extensive institutional
experience in the fields of stock broking, equity
sales, fund raising, and portfolio management.
Prior to COL, he was Assistant Vice President of JP
Morgan Securities Philippines from 1999 to 2003.
He also served in the same capacity its forerunner
company Jardine Fleming Exchange Capital
Securities Inc. from 1997 to 1999. He was also
Assistant Vice President of DBP-Daiwa Securities
Philippines Inc, from 1995-1997. Mr. Wong has 20
years of equities experience behind him, having
started with the firm First Pacific Securities Philippines
in 1992. He was rated by Asiamoney magazine in
1999 as one of the Philippines” Best in Equity Sales
for that year.
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CORPORATE

The Board of Directors and Management, Officers and Staff
of COL Financial Group, Inc. (“COL” or the “Company”) adhere
to the principles and best practices of good corporate
governance and acknowledge that the same shall be a
guide for the attainment of its corporate goals. COL
believes that good corporate governance is integral to, and goes
hand-in-hand with, sound strategic business management.
The Company expects all its directors, officers and employees
to act with honesty, integrity, transparency, responsibility
and accountability, mutual respect, and commitment to do what
is best for the organization. COL believes that corporate
governance is a reflection of its culture, policies, and
relationship with its customers, employees and shareholders,
and commitment to these values.

The Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance (“Manual”)
has been designed pursuant to the above objectives and
has undergone several revisions to institutionalize the
principles of good corporate governance. As a testimony of
its advocacy and strong adherence to these principles, COL
has been recognized and awarded the PSE Bell Awards for
Corporate Governance in the Large Trading Participant
Category for two consecutive years (2012-2013) by the
Philippine Stock Exchange.

The Manual defines the responsibilities of the Board of
Directors, the Board Committees, and Management to the
Company’s stockholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is primarily responsible
for the governance of the Company’s direction and
control of COL’s business affairs as well as the preservation
of its assets. Corollary to setting the policies for the
accomplishment of its objectives, the Company shall
provide an independent check on Management.

It shall be the Board's responsibility to foster the long-term success
of the Company and secure its sustained competitiveness
and profitability in a manner consistent with its corporate
objectives which it shall exercise in the best interest of the
Company, its shareholders, and other stakeholders.

The Board’s specific responsibilities include, among others,
installing a process of selection to ensure a mix of competent
directors and officers; ensuring the Company’s compliance
with relevant laws, regulations and codes of best business
practices; identifying and monitoring with due diligence key
risk areas and key performance indicators; and developing
and implementing an investor relations program or shareholder

23 communications policy for the Company.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

COL's Board of Directors is composed of eleven (11) directors,
two (2) of whom are independent directors. In order that
no director or small group of directors a combination of
executive and non-executive directors (which include
independent directors) may compose the members of the
Board. The non-executive directors shall possess such
qualifications and stature that would enable them to
effectively participate in the deliberations of the Board.

Each director shall hold office for a term of one year and
until his successor is duly elected and qualified. A director’s
office being one of trust and confidence, he is expected
to act in the best interest of the Company in a manner
characterized by transparency, accountability and fairness.
He shall also exercise leadership, prudence and integrity in
directing the Company towards sustained progress.

MULTIPLE BOARD SEAT

The Board shall consider the adoption of guidelines on the
number of directorships that its members can hold in stock
and non-stock corporations. The optimum number shall
take into consideration the capacity of a director to diligently
and efficiently perform his duties and responsibilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To aid in complying with the principles of good corporate
governance, the Board shall constitute three (3) committees,
namely: the Nomination Committee, the Audit Committee,
and the Compensation or Remuneration Committee.

Below is an overview of the membership and responsibilities
of each of the committees.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee shall have at least three (3)
members, one of whom shall be an independent director,
to review and evaluate the qualifications of all persons
nominated to the Board as well as those appointments
requiring Board approval. It shall also provide assessment
of the Board’s effectiveness in directing the process and
procedure in the election or replacement of directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is composed of at least three (3)
members who shall preferably have accounting and finance




BOARD OF-DIRECTORS

QUG

Chairman:
Members:

Manuel M. Estacion *
Raymond C. Yu

irman:

backgrounds,
one of whom must be an
independent director and shall act as the Chair.

The Committee performs, among others, the following
functions:

*Assist the Board in the performance of its oversight
responsibility for the financial reporting process, system
of internal control, audit process, and monitoring of
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations;

*Check all financial reports against their compliance with
both the internal financial management handbook and
pertinent accounting standards, including regulatory
requirements;

*Provide oversight over Management’s activities in
managing credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal and
other risks of the Company;

*Pre-approve audit plans, scope and frequency; and

*Perform direct interface functions with the internal and
external auditors.

COMPENSATION OR REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Compensation or Remuneration Committee is responsible
for establishing formal and transparent procedures for the
development of policies concerning executive remuneration
or determination of remuneration of directors and officers
to ensure that their compensation is consistent with the
Company’s culture, strategy, and the business environment
in which it operates. The Committee is composed of at least
three members, one of whom is an independent director.

Below is a chart showing the chair and respective members
of the Board Committees, as elected by the Board of
Directors during the organizational meeting held on the
31st of March 2014.

ACCOUNTABILITY TO STOCKHOLDERS

The Board is primarily accountable to the stockholders and
shall provide them with @ balanced and comprehensible

Khoo Boo Boon*
Alexander C. Yu
Caesar A. Guerzon

COMPENSATION

QUG

Chairman:
Members:

Wellington C. Yu
Alexander C. Yu
Catherine L. Ong

assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects on a quarterly basis, including the interim and
other reports that could adversely affect its business, as well
as reports to regulators that are required by law.

Management shall formulate, under the supervision of the
Audit Committee, the rules and procedures on financial
reporting and internal control.

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

The essence of corporate governance is transparency. The
Board shall publicly and timely disclose material information
that could adversely affect the viability of the Company or the
interests of its stockholders and other stakeholders. Such
information shall include, among others, earnings results,
acquisition or disposition of assets, off balance sheet
transactions, related party transactions, and direct and indirect
remuneration of members of the Board and Management.

COL faithfully complies with the financial reporting and
disclosure requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE). Likewise, the Company’s quarterly financial results
are promptly disclosed to the SEC and the PSE.

The Company’s principal manner of communication with
its shareholders is through the annual report and the Annual
Stockholder’s Meeting. During the Annual Stockholder’s
Meeting, Company directors are present and shareholders
are given the opportunity to address questions to the
Chairman, the Board members as well as the Chairpersons
of the different Board Committees.

The Company holds the Annual Stockholders” Meeting at a
pre-determined venue on any day in March of each year as
provided in its By-laws. Special stockholders” meetings can
be called at any time by the President, or by order of the
Board of Directors at its own instance, or at the written
request of the stockholders representing a majority
of the outstanding capital stock.
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1999

AUGUST

Became licensed
by the SEC to
conduct business
as a broker and
seller of Philippine
securities
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2001-2002

MARCH

The COL PH online
f_rading platform
became operational

APRIL

CitisecOnline HK
Ltd. (COL HK)
became a trading
participant of the
Hong Kong exchange

MAY

The COL HK platform
was launched.

2005-2006

NOVEMBER

The COL PH Trading
platform was officially
launched to the public

JULY

COLs IPO for PSE
listing

DECEMBER

PSE approved COL's
application as a
trading participant

2008-2009

AUGUST

Launch of the COL Easy
Investment Program
FEBRUARY

COL began to operate
its PSE seat




2010

APRIL

Launch of the full service
agency and advisory team
| called the COL Private
Clients Group (PCG)

MARCH

Official change of
corporate name to COL
Financial Group, Inc.

APRIL
Launch of the new COL
website with streaming data

DECEMBER

COL received its 1st
PSE Bell Award in
Good Governance
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2013

NOVEMBER

COL received its 2nd
PSE Bell Award in
Good Governance

DECEMBER

Signed MOA with
I-Remit to taps OFWs

o
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LESTONES

2014

JANUARY - OCTOBER

SEC granted COL
its Mutual Funds
Distributor
License

Partnered with BPI,
Sun Life,
PhilamLife, ATRAM
& First Metro

JULY

COL launched the
COL Mobile App on
the i0S platform

SEPTEMBER

Opened the Makati
Investor Center
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On its 15 year, COL moves forward, gratefuland inspired by the Filipino Ives that it
has enriched, While COL holds tre to the missigp-of helping its customers achieve
their financial goals, we look to the future by nergri ng innovative financial solutions

and valie-driven products and services, all towards becoming evesy Filipino
.

investor's trusted wealth-building partner.
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ANUARY

To kick start the year, COL joined PSE’s annual
marathon aimed to facilitate investor education and
promote awareness about the values of stock investing
and its significant role in the country’s economic
growth. PSE’s “Build Run” also dedicated the event to
the victims of Typhoon Yolanda.

FEBRUARY

COL partnered with the CFA Society Philippines in their
yearly fun run focused on achieving financial fitness. On
its second year, the Financial Fitness Run highlighted key
principles and practices to help individual investors reach
their retirement goals by introducing the “Essentials of
More Secure Retirement.”
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Company Teambuilding

M A'Y

The company held its annual teambuilding in Corregidor,
which involved activities and games to help strengthen
camaraderie among COL employees.

Philippine Capital Markets
Investment Conference

COL participated in the PSE’s “Stock Market Investment
Conference” in Cebu City to attract new investors from
the region. COL experts gave lectures covering various
trading strategies and how to use the cost-averaging
method through COL’s Easy Investment Plan (EIP).
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Philippine Retail and
Investment Conference

COL partnered with the CFA Society of the Philippines as they held
their first Philippine Retail Investment Conference on May 28 at
SMX Aura Premiere to increase financial literacy among Filipino
investors. The head of COL's Research Department, April Lee Tan,
together with other top finance executives shared best practices and
recommendations on how to make smart investment decisions.

I-Remit conducted a roadshow named BE F.i.T across Australia &
New Zealand to reach more overseas Filipinos and present to them
additional options when it comes to their remittances.

Money and Me Seminar

Y
COL hosted a seminar by Ms. Sha Nacino, author of
“Money & Me” which talks about financial fitness and
being able to live the life you want.
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alued COL clients were invited to attend the company’s
Mid-year Market Briefing at the Meralco Theater, which
highlighted how to best pasition investments in 2015.
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Launch of Live Tweet Sessions

A Night of Gratitude

Live Twitter sessions with COL's seasoned market
experts were launched as a regular activity to reach out
to customers and share market recommendations.

COL celebrated 15 successful years in the industry with a
night of gratitude with its employees.

COL suiLDs WEALTH IN

M\KNI

Welcome to the COL Investor Center!

SEPTEMBER

The Makati Investor Center opened its doors to the
public, making it easier for people in the central business
district to invest with COL.
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OCTOBER

COL participated in I-Remit’s BE F.i.T roadshow across
Taiwan to give a series of seminars to overseas Filipino
workers on how they can be financially trained and
secured for their future.
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Kerygma Conference
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_ il NOVEMBER

COL Chairman, Edward Lee gave a talk on successful
investing for Sun Life Philippines.

COL sponsored a four-day Catholic inspirational event by
Bo Sanchez titled “Lifted High”. This conference gathered
over 18,000 people all over Metro Manila to attend a
series of sessions focusing on different areas of interest.

Christmas Party
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MARINA CRUZ - GARCIA:
C REATIVITY

RICH

37

I N

For Marina Cruz-Garcia, a richer life is a
life in which you pursue your passion; a
life with ample time to spend with the
people you love. It also means dedicat-
ing life to a cause you believe in. Having
this richer life, however, would be
difficult without investing and managing
your wealth, says Marina, a visual
artist, wife, and a mother of two.
“Investing helped me have the
discipline and the wisdom to manage
wealth. Investing is like a vehicle that
can help you reach your destination,
goals, and dreams on approximate
time. It gives a perspective and preview
of the future you are aspiring to have,”
she explains.

It all starts with a plan and a clear vision.
“First you have to be clear on how you
define real wealth,” says Marina, 31.
“Then, invest in yourself by being the
best you can be in your chosen career,
profession, or business ...Create a plan
and a system to support the plan and
follow it, then repeat the process by
reviewing every year the plan and work
on the habits of investing.”

One also has to invest on knowledge,
adds Marina, who has been investing in
stocks through COL since 2011. “Invest
on your financial education; learn about
money, how it works and how you can
make it work for you. Don’t be afraid to
ask and seek advice from competent
people.”



-

JUNRY TERRADO:

RICH

Like millions of other talented and
well-educated Filipinos, Junry Terrado
works as an engineer overseas in the
hopes of fulfilling his dreams. His job as
a communications engineer in Singapore
pays well. But Junry, 38, knows that
having an overseas job is no guarantee
to financial security.

One has to invest and manage wealth.
Junry is all smiles and proud that five
years with COL turned him into a
millionaire. Thanks to the stock market
and the power of compound interest! In
2013, Junry used his investment gains
to pay off his condominium unit.

Investing, says Junry, helped him gain a
positive financial mindset. There are no
real secrets to wealth-building, he
claims. “I just live a simple life. | pray

N

VALUES

before and after | sleep. | pray before
and after | eat. | go to church every
Sunday to thank God. Until now | dont
have any vices. | think my only passion
is eating great food!” according to him,
It's the outlook that has changed.
“When we buy things, we think of value
for money. For example, if we buy a
laptop or camera or cellphone, we ask,
is it a need or a want? If it'’s a need,
what value we can generate from it?”
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Who says priests don’t have to be
financially savvy? Not Fr. Richmond
Nilo, 41, a school administrator in
Cabanatuan.

Like the good and faithful servants of
the “Parable of the Talents”, Fr.
Richmond has chosen to invest, with
the help of COL, whatever income and
monetary assistance he obtains from
his ministry. In the next five years, Fr.
Richmond hopes to deepen his knowledge
and skills in analyzing the stock market,
which he calls “The best investment
instrument of all time.”

Fr. Richmond’s investing principles are
something other workers in the Lord’s
vineyard might want to emulate.

“| follow two principles in investing,” he
says. “The first one is the most conven-
tional. Don't put all your eggs in one
basket. Diversify—use two or more
investment instruments, like the stock
market, bonds, mutual funds.”

Thus, for Fr. Richmond, a richer life is
being able to share what you have to
the marginalized. Nowadays, there’s a
different smile on Fr. Richmond’s face.
“You cannot say that you are truly rich
if you just acquire and acquire wealth
without sharing it. The more money
you have the greater responsibility you
have towards your neighbor.”

FR. RICHMOND NILO:

RICH IN FA|TH



Paolo Vasquez loves skateboarding.
Fortunately, he was able to harness this
passion into an enterprise—not only
does he ride the longboards for fun, he
gets to earn by doing what he loves
most and sharing this experience and
craftsmanship with other longboarders.

Longboards are not the only things that
make Paolo, 39, all smiles nowadays.
He’s now a dad to little Lala. He’s also a
newbie investor, thanks to COL. “Prior
to learning about investments, | viewed
wealth quite unsophisticatedly. It meant
merely having a lot of money to spend.
Money, in turn, was viewed simply as
something used to buy material
goods,” Paolo shares.

Paolo is glad to have discovered COL
and learn the value of staying invested.
Through this he is able to continue his
passion without worrying too much
about the future, because he knows his
money is working for him. Even more, he
now knows how it is to live aricher life.

PAOLO VASQUE/Z:

RICH I N
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FITZ VILLAFUERTE:

41

RICH

I N

FREEDOM

An entrepreneur and a registered
financial planner, Fitz Villafuerte knew
how money was supposed to work.
“Before, investing or being an investor
simply meant making your money
work for you, that you should invest
because you want your money to
grow,” says Fitz, who's also a personal
finance blogger and author.

Fitz, in fact, has been investing
elsewhere since 2003. He smiles upon
recalling his decision to join COL. He
had a realization—investing is not
about adding more zeroes to one’s
bank account. Rather, investing is a life
strategy that will help you fulfill your

dreams faster. “Being an investor
means realizing that your dreams have
deadlines,” says Fitz, 38.

Fitz now sees investing as a way to
fulfill his dreams faster, not having to
wait until retirement. His advice to
other investors is not to invest simply to
grow money. “Have specific and
measurable goals. This will be the key
to determining where you should invest
and knowing how much wealth you
should secure for yourself.”
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COL has been a pioneer in advocating
financial literacy and providing investor
education. The company being firmly rooted
on the belief of its chairman and founder,
Edward K. Lee that ‘Every Filipino
deserves to be Rich’, has significantly
contributed to the growth in the
number of Filipinos investing in the
Philippine stock market.

FINANCIAL LITERACY
AND INVESTOR EDUCATION

COL believes that in order to build
genuine wealth, one must be armed
with proper education and discipline.
COL has devoted its time and resources
to deliver seminars covering the different
ways on how to make your money work
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for you through the stock market to
practical approaches towards investing.

In October 2014, COL conducted free
seminars on finance and stock market
investing as well as road shows in
Taiwan, in partnership with [-Remit, Inc.
More than 1,000 overseas Filipino
workers attended these events.

Recognizing the role of higher education
institutions in spreading its advocacy,
COL is initiating tie-ups with academic
institutions. COL has sealed a partnership
with the University of the Philippines’
(UP) Junior Finance Association for the
group’s INVST program. The yearlong
partnership included a donation to
renovate the Tambayan Center in the
UP Diliman campus.



OUTREACH ACTIVITIES

COL has a two-year sponsorship and
participation agreement with the Save
the La Mesa Watershed Project of
ABS-CBN Foundation, which began in 2013.
Company executives and employees

visited the La Mesa Watershed in
Quezon City, participating in an
environmental awareness lecture as
well as educational activities and
demonstrations.
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OUTREACH ACTIVITIES

On Sept 20, 2014, the COL Private Clients
Group invited customers and their families
for an exclusive performance of Repertory
Philippines” “Pinocchio”. Special guests

for the event were orphans from Virlanie
Foundation, Tahanan ng Pagmamahal
Children Homes, Inc., and Quality Life
Discoveries.
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COL Financial Group, Inc.

COL FINANCIAL

PHILIPPRPINMES

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY
. FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of COL. Financial Group, Inc. (formerly CitisecOnline.com, Inc.) and Subsidiary
{the Group) is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, including the additional components
attached therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Philippines,
This responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the
same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.. the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has
examined the financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders and Board of Directors, has expressed its opinion on
the faimess of presentation upon completion of such examination.

rd K. Les
CHairman of the Board

Senior Vice Presitfent and Chief Financial Officer

Signed this 4™ day of March 2015,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
COL Financial Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of COL Financial Group, Inc.
{formerly CitisecOnline.com, Inc.) and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated statements of income,
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. consolidated statements of changes in equity and
consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2014, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits, We conducted our andits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judement,
including the assessment of the rnisks of materal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A member firm of Errsi & Young Giobal Limried



COL Financial Group, Inc.
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Building a better
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly. in all material respects, the
financial position of COL Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiary as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
and their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the penod ended
December 31, 2014 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Eleanore A, I;.a}'u.g a 3

Partner

CPA Centificate No. 0100794

SEC Accreditation No. 1250-A (Group A),
August 9, 2012, valid until August 8. 2015

Tax Identification Mo, 163-069-453

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-97-2015,
January 5, 2015, valid until Janwary 4, 2018

PTR No. 4751289, January 5, 2015, Makati City

March 4, 2015

iy member firm of Emst 4 Young Global Lissted



COL FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

(Formerly CitisecOnline.com, Inc. and Subsidiary)

2014 Annual Report

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Currenl Assels

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4)

Cashin a segregated account (Note 5)

Finanaal ts at fair value through profit or less (FVPL, Note 6)
ahles (Mote 7)

Other receivables (Note 7)

Prepayments

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Asseis

Property and equipment (Mote 8)
Intangibles (Mote %)

Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 17)
Oither noncurrent assets (Note 10}

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
Securities in box, in Philippine Depository and Trst Corporation
and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Comypary, Limited

{ Forward)

December 31
2014 2013
Security Valuation Security Valuation
Money Balance Lang Short Money Balance Long Short

P4,640,187,892 P3,203,489,204
154,129,025 112,593 425

9,375,564 B9,375,564 T.210,578 #7.210,678

1,438 423,878 6,792,074,324 1,3 53,823 5,277,924,865
12,130,063 6,790,722
2,267,080 2,166,739
-EEZEA’:e'IéSIPZ dirluf!é-ﬂ ll]dii‘?l
35,825,494 39,066,499
23,338,991 23,269,449
37,145,366 53303, 732
8,581,309 2048137
iﬂliﬂllm 123 687 ELT
!—’ﬁaﬁl 4!&722 B4,807. 797 408

BS5,408,644,050

P47,265,033,481
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December 31
2014 2013
Security Valuation Security Valuation
Money Balance Long Short Money Balance Long Short

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables (Note 11) B4,940.928, 346 B48,607,19%4,171 P3,398,766,516 B41,979,897,938
Other current liabilities (Note 12) 71,836,693 04,581,008
Fringe benefit tax payable 30,437,647 -
Ingome tax payable 13,556,314 13,804,483
Total Current Liabilities 5,056,759,000 3,477,152,007
Moncurrent Liability
Retirement cbligation (Nate 16) 28,192,690
Total Liabilities 3,584,951, 690
Equity (Notes | 3 and 16}
Capital stock 474,550,000
Capital in excess of par value 53,219,024
Cost of share-based payment (Mote 16) 5490 602
Accumulated translation adjustment (21,814, M47)
Loss on remeasurement of retirement obligation (4,400, T83)
Retained earmings:

Appropriated 140,028,578 107,520,383

Unappropriated 629,371,558 680,802,603
Total Equity 1.276 453,032 1,303,014, 508
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ma-&liauuzz P35, 408,644,059 FS5 408,644,059 24 807 792 A08 #47,265,033, 481 247 265033 481

Zeg accompaaping Moferfo Comaolidated Finencial Felewants,
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COL FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
{(Formerly CitisecOnline.com, Ine. and Subsidiary)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2014 2003 2012
REVENTUES
Commissions (Mote 18) PS03, 300,041 B540,521,647 B463,303,501
Cithers:
Inlerest i ome {Nole 14) 203,130,223 198,655,268 184,085, 165
Giain on financial assets at FVPL - net (Mote &) 1379294 - 1,766,368
H.'nru::]w.ecl;_z;lnl on friadecial assets ot FYPL - net 1,028340 - -
Foreign exchange gains - net 518 31466 -
CHhers 1,587,660 1,752,223 1,733,913
T11,550,710 T40, all,605 650,802,947
COST OF SERVICES
Commission expense (Mote 18) 85,323,813 111,551,863 B8, 863,586
Perzonnel cosis = -.ﬁpi.-nm'nmz {Nide 15} 63,239,706 65,446,518 57,256,953
Seock exchange dues and fees 12,010,298 12,331,22 10,875,141
Cendral depository fees T, 702,432 8,257,728 5,613,808
Re=earch 1,513,288 975429 23,224
Cithers:
Commun ications 23,913,982 23,536 890 22 521,749
Cithers (Mole 8) 184,511 1,184.374 2.098.615
193, BER, 030 223,684,030 188,152,676
GROSSE PROFIT 517,662,680 517,276,575 462,740,271
OPERATING EXPENSES
J\I!HLI msirale E‘LPEFI!‘!‘."}'Z
Fringe benefit tax 30,437,647 - -
Personnel cosls (Note 15) 30,216,124 26,834,553 29,782,288
Professional fees (Note 18) 213,495,950 19,687,554 22,758,513
M anagement bonus 13,386,282 16,715,797 13,021,051
Rentals (Mote 19) 11,597,494 10, 820,260 10,024, 186
Advertising and marketing 9,748,647 L0, 50,388 4,846,634
Taxes and licenses 4.910,260 4,059,154 3,910,937
Power, light and water EAREE LT 3,578,703 3,746,536
Security and messengerial services 3,870,683 31,597.811 2465215
Bank charges 3 285,008 3,527,755 1,757,155
Representation and entertmmment 3,359,742 2,305,722 1,306 456
Office supplies 2, BH0,838 2615328 2,039,050
Insurkiee and bonds 2,500,221 2374102 2,198,516
Condominium dues and utilities 1,864 854 1,754, 120 1,755,246
Repiirs ancl mampenance 1,B15976 1,092,623 H83,137
Stock option expense (Motes 16 and 18) 1,430,000 572,000 1,742,000
Trainings, seminars and meetings 1,253 365 557,516 1 7TITADE
Transporiation and travel 1,003,392 1,676,007 T10,934
Dionations and contributions 1,04k, 000 - -
hiembership fees and dues o], BE9 936,204 878,018
Directors’ fees 40,000 T40,000 G90,000
o icalions 698, 485 673,441 658,124
Cihers 3,352,877 1,074 436 971488
158,564,574 115,243,865 107,863,472
Drepreciation and amortization {MNote 8) 15,046,813 14,534,422 14,259,874
Interest expense (Mote 16) 1,574,391 1,433,064 219,511
Provision for credit losses (Mote 7) 1184279 - -
Miscellanecus expense 3k, 561 82,312 82,781
176,678,618 131,293,663 123,125,638
INCOME BEFORE INCONME TAX 340, BE4, 062 385,082,912 339,614,633
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX (Mole 17)
Current B4, 630,826 B8, 160,210 37,260,181
Deferred {5,913,824) (5,767, 1%91) (3,822,538)
T8, 717,002 #2,353,01%9 33,437,643
NET INCOME F?.ﬁi&ﬂ'.’,[lﬁﬂ FEDSESS‘J'.SBB B306, 176,950

Hed aeeamparng Noder i Cov

adared Fimanciad Sharemevs,
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COL FINANCIAL GROUP, INC, AND SUBSIDIARY

{(Formerly CitiseeOnline.com, Ine. and Subsidiary)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
NET INCOME F262, 267,140 303 580 R93 #¥306,176,990
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L.OSS), NET OF
Tﬁ[tm‘n that will mot be reclassified fo consolidated statements
of Ineome

CGain (loss) on remeasurement of retirement obligation -
net of tax effect of B1,646, 940 in 2014, P348 490
in 2013 and (81,651,089 in 2012 (Note 16) J.B41560 213,144 (3,852,542)
Item that may be reclassi fied subsequently to consolidated
statemnents of iIncome:
Translation adjustments - net of tax effect of P497 RO
in 2014, 2972, 387 in 2013 and (FE 673,367} in

2012 1,161,553 23 268,903 (20,237 857
S004.413 24,082,047 (24,090 399
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P267,271.473 P327.671.940 F2182 086,591
Earnings Per Share (Mote 24)
Basic iS5G B.65 B0 .66
Dilted .55 B0.64 B0.64
—_—

See accompanying Motes fo Consolidated Fimancial Satements.
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COL FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

(Formerly CitisecOnline.com, Inc. and Subsidiary)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Loss on
Cost of Acammulsted Remeasrement
Capatal Share-Based Tramslathon of Retirament Retzined Eamings
Stodk Par Vale Payment Adjustment Cibligation Appropriated Unappropriated Total
Balances at January 1, 2002 B43E550,000 44,890,024 BE3,54] 685 (B26,007 S46) (85,204 245) B4 5,004,197 B709,031 496 1,285,814 611
Tssnance of sheres upon exercize of slock aptions (Note 16) 9,260,000 260D, (WM 11860000
Cogt of share-based payment (Note 16) - - {30278,7) - - - - (30,278.027)
Diedlaration of cash dividend (Note 13) — — — — — — (280,230, 000 (280, 230, 000
Net mcome - - - - - - 306,176 990 306,176,990
Other comprehensive loss {20,237 {3.852,542) {24,000 359
Tatal comprehensive income (loss) {20,237 {3,852,542) 306,176,990 282,086,591
Approgriation of retuined eamings (Note 13 - — — — — 30,4 54 004 {30.454,004) —
Balances at December 31, 3012 467,810,000 47,499,024 33,263,658 {446,245 403) 19,056,787) 75458201 T04.524 482 1,273,253,175
Issuance of shares upon exercise of stock options (Note 16) 240,000 - - - - - = 840,000
Cost of share-based payment (Note 16) - - £3,496,107) - - - - {3,496,107y
Dedaration of cash dividend (Note 13) — — — — — — (265,249,500) (265,249,500)
Net income - - 303,589,893 303,589,893
Other comprefiensive income - - - 23,268,503 §13,144 - = 24,082,047
Total comprehensive income - - - 23,268,903 813,144 - 303,589 893 327,671,940
Appropriation of retained eamings (Wote 13) — = = = — 32062,182 {32,062.182) —
Balances at December 31, 2013 468,650,000 47,499 024 29.767.551 {22,576 500) 18,243 643) 107,520,383 680,802 603 1,303,019 508
lssuance of shares upon exercise of stock options (Nate 16) 5 0040, 000 5,720,000 - - - - - 11,620,000
Cost of share-based payment (Note 16) - - {24,267, 949) - e = = {24,267 949
Declaration of cash dividend (Mote 13) - - - - - - (281,190,000) (281,190,0000
Nel meome 262,267,060 262,267,060
Other comprehensive income - - - 1,161,553 3,842 860 — — 200,413
Total comprehensive income - - - 1,161,553 3,842 860 - 262,267 060 267271 AT
Appropriation of reained eamings (Mote 13) - = = = = 32,508,195 {32,508.195) =
Balanoces at December 31, 2014 PA474,580, 000 P53,219.024 PE,499,602 (F21.814947) (B4, 400,783) F140,028 5378 N!!,STL.._HS Fl ET&QQ.OM

See accempanying Nes
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COL FINANCIAL GROUP, INC, AND SUBSIDIARY

{Formerly CitisecOnline.com, Ine. and Subsidiary)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax #340,984,002 P385,982,912  P339,614,633
Adjustments for:
Interest income (Mote 14) (203,130,223) (1986552690  (184,089,165)
Fringe benefit tax 30,437,647 - -
Diepreciation and amortization (Mote 8) 15,231,324 15, 718,79 16,358,489
Retirement costs under *Personnel costs” (Motes 15
and 16} 4,487,206 4,235,520 3,168,564
Interest expense (MNote 16) 1,574,301 1,433,064 918 511
Stock option expense (Motes 16 and 18) 1,430,000 572,000 1,742,000
Provision for credit losses (MNate T) 1,184,279 - -
Unrealized loss (gam) on financial assets at FVPL {1,109,791) 78,088 (276,187
Less (gain) on disposal of property and equipment
(MNote §) 56,808 — (4,448)
Dividend income (Note 6) (29,651) (156.803) (28,589)
Operating ncame before working capital changes 191,116,142 20,208,317 177,404,808
Decrease (increase) in:
Cash in a segregated account (41,535,600) (4%,393,050) 113,980,196
Financial assets at FVFL (1,029,159) f4,347.712) (1,139,651)
Trade receivables (85,359,331) 154,821,033 (320,602,454)
Other receivobles 356,00= 185,905 38,974
Prepayments (97,289) 322273 (263,209)
Other noncurrent assets {9,570,913) (10,713,428) (7,432,688)
Increasa (decrense) in:
Trade payables 1,541,543,509 510,883,058 743,606,378
Other current liabilities 65,996,831 (3,668,816} (8,805,0200
Met cash generated from operations 1,602,420,195 B08, 297,580 687,787,334
Interest received 197,417,827 196,715,802 183,930,182
Tncome taxes paid (75,832,613)  (74.015616) (15,293,190
Dividends received 29,651 156,803 28,589
et cash flows from operating activities 1, 724,035,060 031,154 560 B56,452015
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of property and equipment (MNote 8) {12,109,102) (16,307.76T) (13,446,556)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
{Mote 8) 62,730 — 256,045
et cash flows used in investing activities {12,046,372) (16,307, 767) (13,190.511)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends declared and paid (Note 13) (2B1,190,000) (2952495000 (280,230,000
Issuance of additional shares (Notes 13 and 16) 5,900, 00 240,000 5,260,000
et cash flows used m ﬁnanz:-ing activities (275,290,000) (294,400,500 (270,970,000
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1, 436,698,688 620,437 302 572,292 404
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,203,489.204 2583051902 2.010.759.498

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

£4,640,187,892 P3,203, 489204 P2,583,051,902

d Firancial Satements.

e panying otes f0 Charolidot
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COL FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
{(Formerly CitisecOnline.com, Inc. and Subsidiary)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l. Corporate Information

COL Financial Group, Ine. (formerly CitiseeOnline.com, Ine.; Parent Company) was registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commussion (SEC) on August 16, 1999, primarily to
engage in the business of broker of securities and to provide stockbrokerage services through
innovative internet technology, COL Securities (HK) Limited (formerly CitisecOnline.com Hong
Kong Limited; COLHE: Subsidiary), a wholly-owned foreign subsidiary, is domiciled and
incorporated in Hong Kong (HK), primarily to act as a stockbroker and to invest in securities. In
the normal course of business, the Parent Company and COLHEK (the Group) are also engaged in
providing financial advice, in the gathering and distribution of financial and investment
information and statistics and in acting as financial, commercial or business representative. The
registered address of the Parent Company is Unit 2401-B East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Philippines. The registered address of COLHK is Room 803,
Luk Yu Building, 24-26 Stanley Street, Central, Hong Kong.

The Parent Company is a public company listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

On August 15, 2006, the Board of Directors (BOD) of the Parent Company approved the
acquisition of the Trading Right of Mark Securities Corporation for the purpose of making the
Parent Company a PSE Trading Participant. On December 13, 2006, the BOD of PSE approved
the application of the Parent Company as a Corporate Trading Participant in PSE through the
transfer of the Trading Right registered in the name of Mark Securities Corporation and the
designation of Mr. Conrado F. Bate as its Nominee Trading Participant (see Mote 9),

On October 20, 2008, the Parent Company made an mnitial contribution to the Clearing and Trade
Guaranty Fund (CTGF) of the Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines (SCCP) as a
prerequisite to its accreditation as a clearing member of SCCP. On Aungust 20, 2009, the Parent
Company made a top-up contribution six (&) months after it started operating its own seat in the
PSE on February 16, 2009

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general meeting of the Subsidiary held
on May 19, 2011 and approved by the Companies Registry of the Securities and Futures
Commussion (SFC), the name of the Subsidiary was changed from CitisecOnline.com Hong Kong
Limited to COL Securities (HK) Limited.

Om February 21, 2012, SEC approved the Parent Company’s application for the change in
company name from CitisecOnline.com, Inc. to COL Financial Group, Inc.

In various dates in 2014, the Parent Company was registered and authorized by the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission to act as muinal fund distributor of various funds.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group as at Diecember 31, 2014 and
2013 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 were authorized for
wsue by the BOD on March 4 2013
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2. Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
financial assets at FVPL, which have been measured at fair value, The Group’s consolidated
financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the presentation currency under
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). Based on the ecconomic substance of the
underlying circumstances relevant to the Group. the functional currencies of the Parent Company
and COLHE have been determined to be Philippine peso and HE dollar (HES), respectively. All
values are rounded to the nearest peso, except as otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in

compliance with PFRS.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and COLHK, a
100% owned and controlled foreign subsidiary, after eliminating significant intercompany
balances and transactions.

Control is achieved when the Parent Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable relurns from
its invalvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. The Parent Company controls an investee if and only if the Parent Company has all
of the following:

+  Power over the investee:
» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

* The ability to use its power over the investee to atfect the amount of the Parent Company s
returms.

The Subsidiary s consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Parent
Company obtains control, and continues to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases,
The financial statements of the Subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company. using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial vear except for
the following new and amended PFRS. Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), Philippine
Interpretations based on Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes (IFRIC) and
improvements to PFRS which were adopted as at Janwary 1, 2014,

« PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities ( Amendments)
These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off™
and the criteria for non-simultancous scttlement mechanizms of clearing houses to qualify for
offsetting and are applicd retrospectively, The Group is presenting ils financial assets and
financial liabilities at gross amounts in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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o PAS 36, fmpatrment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financical Assets
{Amendments)
These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PERS 13, Fair Fafue
Measurement, on the disclosures required under PAS 36. In addition, these amendments
require disclosure of the recoverable amounts for assets or cash-generating units for which
impairment loss has been recognized or reversed during the period. The application of the
amendments has no impact on the disclosure in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

s PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments))
These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria and retrospective
application is required. These amendments have no impact on the Group as the Group has no
derivatives during the current or prior periods.

& Investment Entities { Amendments to PFRS 10, Consalidated Financial Statemeants,
PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and PAS 27, Separate Financial
Statemenis)
These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that
meet the definition of an investment entity under PFRS 10. The exception to consolidation
requires investment entitics to account for subsidiaries at FVPL. The amendments must be
applied retrospectively, subject to certain transition relief. These amendments have no impact
to the Group, since none of the entities within the Group qualifies to be an investment entity
under PFRS 10.

s  Philippine Interpretation [FRIC 21, Levies (IFRIC 21)
IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
pavment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be
anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective application is
required for IFRIC 21, This interpretation has no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvemenis to PFRSs {20010-200 2 cycie)

In the 2010-2012 annual improvements cycle, seven amendments to six standards were issued.
which included an amendment to FFRS 13. The amendment to PFRES 13 i3 effective immediately
and it clarifics that short-term recevables and payables with no stated interest rates can be
measured al mvoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. This amendment has
no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Arnnual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-201 3 cycle)

In the 2011-2013 annuval improvements cyele, four amendments 1o four standards were issued,
which included an amendment to PFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards-First-time Adoption of PFRS. The amendment to PFRS 1 is effective immediately. Ii
clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new standard that is not
vet mandatory. but permits early application, provided either standard is applied consistenthy
throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first FFRS financial statements. This amendment
has no impact on the Group as it i not a first-time PFRS adopter.
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Standards and Interpretations Issued but not vet Effective
The Group will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when these
become effective,

Effective Date to be Determined.

+ PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement (2010 version)
PFRS 9 (2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applics to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilitics as defined m PAS 39,
PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value at mitial recognition. A debt
financial asset may, if the fair value option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
amortized cost if it is held within a busmess model that has the objective to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal cutstanding. All
other debt instruments are subsequently measured at FVPL. All equity financial assets are
measured at fair value either through other comprehensive income (OCI) or profit or loss.
Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at FVPL, For FVO liabilities, the
amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in OCL The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other PAS 39
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been camried forward
into PFRS 9. including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the
FVO. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on the
classification and measurement of financial Labilities.

PFRS 9 (20110 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
This mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of
PFRS 9 is adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). Such
adoption, however, s still for approval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA)

s Philippine Interpretation [FRIC 13, dgreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The SEC and the
FRSC have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (TASB) and an evaluation of the
requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate
industry is completed. Adoption of this interpretation when it becomes effective will not have
any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The following new standards and amendments issued by the IASE were already adopted by the
FRSC but are still for approval of the BOA

Effective January I, 20135:

o PAS 19, Emplovee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Emplovee Contributions { Amendments)
PAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans, Where the contributions are linked to service, they
should be attributed to periods of service as a negative benetfit. These amendments clarify
that. if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an
entity is permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the
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period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of
service. This amendment is effective for annpal periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2013, Tt is not expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Group, since
the Parent company does not have a defined benefit contribution plan with contributions from
employees and third parties while the subsidiary uses defined contribution plan,

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (200 0-201 2 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after JTamuary 1, 2015 and are not expected to have material impact on the Group. They
include:

e PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition
This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifics various issucs relating to the
definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

a, A performance condition must contain a service condition,
b. A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service.

¢ A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of
another entity in the same group.

d. A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition.

e If the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting
period, the service condition is not satistied.

e PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Aceounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination
The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after July 1, 2014, It clarifies that a contingent consideration that is not classified
as equity is subsequently measured at FVPL whether or not it falls within the scope of PAS 39
{or PFRS 9 if early adopted). The Group shall consider this amendment for future business
combinations.

e PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the
Total of the Repartable Segments " Assets to the Entity’s Assets
The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:

a.  An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in the standard, including a brief description of operating segments that have been
ageregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins) vsed to assess
whether the segments are “similar’,

b.  The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required
disclosure for segment liabilities,
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o PAS 16, Fraperty, Flant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangibie Assets - Revaluation
Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the assct
may be revalued by reference to the observable data on either the gross or the net carrying
amount. In addition. the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the difference between
the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

» PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is an
entity that provides key management personnel services, is a related party subject to the
related party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to
disclose the expenses incurred for management services,

Annual Improvemenis to PFRSs (20011-201 3 cyclel

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2015 and are not expected 1o have material impact on the Group. They
inglude:

+ PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope FExceptions for Joint Arrangements
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope
exceptions within PFFRS 3:

a. Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3,

b. This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

« PFRS 13, Fair Falue Measurement - Partfolio Exception
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13
can be applied not only to financial assets and financial Labilitics, but also to other contracts
within the scope of PAS 39 (or FFRS 9, as applicable),

o PAS 40, Investment Property
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that PFRS 3, and not the description of
ancillary services in PAS 40, i used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset
or business combination. The description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only differentiates
between investment property and owner-occupied property (iL.e. property, plant and
equipment ).

Effective January 1. 201 6:

* PAS 16, Praperty, Flant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification af
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amorfization { Amendments)
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
eeonomic benefits that are penerated from operating a business {of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method carmot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. The Group does not expect that these amendments will have material
impact in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.
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PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Plants

{ Amendments)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41, Instead, PAS 16 will apply.
After initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost
{before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Granis and Disclosure of Government Assistance,
will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
after Tanuary 1, 2016, with carly adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to
have any impact to the Group as the Group does not have any bearer plants,

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
(Amendments)

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in thewr separate financial statements. Entitics
already applying FFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS
clecting to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to
apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments arc effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2016, with carly adoption permitted. These
amendments will not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, lnvestments in Associates and Joint
Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets berween an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Ventfure

These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFES 10 and those in PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture, The amendments require that a full gain or loss
is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it 15 housed in a subsidiary or
not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are
effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2016, These amendments will
not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 11. Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

{ Amendments)

The amendments to PFES 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combmation accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
retained. In addition. a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity.
are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to
both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

stalements.
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o PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to
rate-regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory
deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14
must present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of
financial position and present movements in these account balances as separate line items in
the statement of profit or loss and OCI. The standard requires disclosures on the nature of.
and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on
its financial statements. FFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016. Smee the Group is an existing FFRS preparer, this standard would not apply.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle

The Anmal Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after JTamuary 1, 2016 and are not expected to have material impact on the Group. They
include:

o PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal. rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is. therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies
that changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

« PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Comtracts
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
tramsferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFES 7 in
order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applicd such that
the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing invalvement will need to be
done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided for
any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the
amendments.

o PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PERS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statentenis
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial
report unless they provide a significant update to the mformation reported in the most recent
annual report.

o PAS 19, Emplovee Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high
quality corporate bonds in that curency, government bond rates must be used.
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PAS 34, fnterim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Interim
Financial Report'

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

Effective January I, 2018:

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39 (2013 version)

PFES 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project to replace PAS 39 which
pertains to hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge
aceounting model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include
replacing the rules-based hedge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on
the economic relations hip between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the effiect
of credit risk on that economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the
hedged item, not only for financial items but also for non-financial items, provided that the
risk component is separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value
of an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread
to be excluded from the designation of a dervative instrument as the hedging mstrument and
accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge
accounting. PFRS 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective
date of January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by
the FRSC. The adoption of the final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by
BOA. The adoption of PFES 9 & not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014 or final version)

In July 2014, the final version of FFRES 9 was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2018, with carly application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but
comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9
is permitted if the date of initial application i before February 1, 2015. The adoption of the
final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA. The adoption of PFRS 9 is
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The following new standard issued by the IASB has not vet been adopted by the FRSC,

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers, Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transterring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with carly adoption permitted.
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The Group s currently assessing the impact of [IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard
on the required effective date once adopted locally.

The revised, amended and additional disclosures or accounting changes provided by the standards
and nterpretations will be included in the consolidated financial statements in the year of

adoption, if applicable.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are mitially recorded in the prevailing functional currency
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign
currencies are restated at the closing functional curreney rate of exchange at the end of the
reporting period.  All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income.

The financial statements of the foreign consclidated subsidiary are translated at closing exchange
rates with respect to the consolidated statement of financial position, and at the average exchange
rates for the year with respect to the consolidated statement of income. Resulting translation

differences are included in equity (under accumulated translation adjustment). Upon disposal of

statement of income as a component of the gain or loss on disposal.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of
three (3) months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash in a Segregated Account
Cash in a segregated account represents clients” monies maintained by COLHK with a licensed
bank arising from its normal course of business,

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Date of Recognition

Financial instruments are any contracts that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments are recognized in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of linancial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized

on the trade date.

Initial Recognition and Classification of Financial Tnstrunents

All financial assets, including trading and investment securities and loans and receivables, are
initially measured at fair value. Except for securities valued at FVPL, the initial measurcment
of financial assets includes transaction costs. The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-
for-sale (AFS) financial assets, and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an
active market, Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at each end of the
reporting period. The Group’s financial assets are of the nature of financial assets at FVPL, and
loans and receivables. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has no HTM investments
and AFS financial assets,
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Also under PAS 39, all financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case
of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities are
classified as at FVPL or other financial liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are of the nature of other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity net of any
related income tax benchits.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at FVPL

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL include financial assets and financial liabilities
held for trading purposes, financial assets and financial liabilities designated upon by management
at initial recognition as at FVPL, and dertvative instruments (including bifurcated embedded
derivatives). Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling and repurchasing in the near term.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are designated as at FVPL on initial recognition when the
following criteria are met:

* The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them
on a different basis; or

s The assets and liabilitics are part of a group of financial assets, fmancial liabilitics or both
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; or

e  The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately recorded.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in “Gain on financial assets at
FWVPL - net” in the consolidated statement of income. Interest camed or incurred s recorded in
interest income or expense, respectively, while dniidend income 1s recorded in other revenues
according to the terms of the contract. or when the right of the payment has been established.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has no financial assets and financial labilities that
have been designated as at FVPL. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has financial
assets which are held for trading purposes that are classified as financial assets at FVPL.,

Loans and Receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a
debtor with no intention of trading the receivables.

This accounting policy mainly relates to the consolidated statement of financial position captions
“Cash and cash equivalents’, “Cash in a segregated account”, *Trade and other receivables” and
refundable deposits under *Other noncurrent assets”, which arise primarily from serviee revenues
and other types of receivables.
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Receivables are recognized mitially at fair value, which normally pertains to the billable amount.
After initial measurement. loans and recervables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less allowance for credit losses. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization is included in ‘Interest income” in the
consolidated statement of income. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in
‘Provision for credit losses” in the consolidated statement of income.

Other Financial Liakiities

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as at FVPL are
classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results
in the Group having an obligation either 1o deliver cash or another financial assel to the holder, or
to satisly the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The components of 1ssued financial instruments
that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity
component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the
amount separately determined as the fair value of the hability component on the date of issue,
After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue
and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. Any effects of restalement of foreign currency-
denominated Liabilities are recognized in “Foreign exchange gains - net” account in the
consolidated statement of income.

This accounting policy applies primarily to the consolidated statement of financial position
captions “Trade payables™ and “Other current liabilities” and other obligations that meet the above
defimition {other than liabilities covered by other accounting standards, such as income tax payable
and other government payahles),

Fair Value AMeasurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, financial assets at FVPL at fair value at each
end of the reporting period. Also, fair values of financial instruments measured at amortized cost
are disclosed in Note 22,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transter the
liability takes place cither:

* In the principal market for the asset or hability, or

s In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group, The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statement are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level nput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Leovel 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

s Level 2 - Valvation techmigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement s unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis. the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at each end of the reporting period.

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets 1s
determined by reference to quoted market close prices at the close of business on the end of the
reporting period.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such technigues include comparison to similar investments for which market
observable prices exist and discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or Liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Trade Receivables and Payables

Trade recevables from customers, which include margin accounts and payable to clearing house
and other brokers arise from securitics purchased (in a regular way transaction) that have been
contracted for but not vet delivered at the end of the reporting period. Payable to customers and
receivable from clearing house and other brokers arise from securities sold (in a regular way
transaction) that have been contracted for but not yet delivered at the end of the reporting period.
Refer to the accounting policy for “Loans and receivables” and “Other financial liabilitics™ for
recognition and measurement. The related security valuation shows all positions as of clearance
date.

Financial Azsets
A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

® The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,
s  The Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangements or
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s The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvemnent that takes the form of a guarantes over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

When the Group continues to recognize an asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, the
entity also recognizes an associated liability. Despite the other measurement requirements in
PFRS. the transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the entity has retained. The associated hability is measured in such a
way that the net carrying amount of the transferred asset and the associated liability is:

a.  the amortized cost of the rights and obligations retained by the entity, i the translerred asset is
measured at amortized cost; or

b. equal to the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the entity when measured on a
stand-alone basis, if the transferred assct 1s measured at fair value.

The Group shall continue to recognize any income arising on the transferred asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and shall recognize any expense incurred on the associated Lability.

Financial Liabilities
A financial liability 18 derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or has expired,

Where an existing finaneial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at cach end of the reporting period whether a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has ocewrred since
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, defaull or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults,
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Assets Carried at Amortized Cost

The Group assesses, at each end of the reporting period. whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an mdividually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss s or continues to
be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there 1 objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss s measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR (1., the EIR
computed at imtial recognition). The carmrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly
or through the vse of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized. the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

In relation to receivables. a provision for credit losses 18 made when there 1s objective evidence
{such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difTiculties of the debtor) that the
Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Impaired debis are derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are only offs et and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and the Group intends to ither settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and the Lability
simultaneously,

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group is not setting off financial instruments in
accordance with PAS 32 and docs not have relevant offsctting arrangements. The Group
presenting its financial assets and financial liabilities at gross amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Input Value-added Taxes (VAT)
Input VAT represents VAT imposed on the Parent Company by its suppliers and contractors for
the acquisition of goods and services required under Philippine taxation laws and regulations.

Input VAT 15 stated at its estimated net realizable values,
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Prepavments and Other Noncurrent Assets

The Group's prepayments arc composed of prepaid insurance, prepaid taxes, prepaid subscriptions
and other prepayments. Other noncurrent assels are composed of deposit to CTGE, refundable
deposits and input VAT, These assets are classified as current when it is probable to be realized
within one (1) vear from the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as
noncurrent assets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
aceumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment in value. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment, if the recognition eriteria are
mel.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties,
non-refundable taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and
equipment have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged
against income in the period when the costs are newrred. In sitwations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditures have resulled in an increase in the future cconomic benelits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally
assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of property
and equipment.

Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that 1 significant in relation to the total
cost of the item is depreciated separately.

Diepreciation and amortization & computed on the straighi-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Category Number of Years
Online trading equipment and facilities 3-10
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10
Leasehold improvements 5 or term of lease,

whichever is shorter

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable,

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon dispesal or when noe future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.
The asset’s residual values, if any, useful lives and methods are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.
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Intangibles

Intangibles are composed of exchange trading rights, which are carried at cost less any allowance
for impairment losses. Exchange trading rights are reviewed for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carryving values may be impaired.
The exchange trading rights are deemed to have indefinite useful lives as there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset 15 expected to generate net cash inflows for the Group.
The Parent Company does not intend to sell its exchange trading right in the near future,
COLHK s exchange trading right is a nontransferable right.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is an indication that its
prepayments, property and equipment, intangibles and other noncurrent assets may be impaired.
If any such indication exists or when the annual impairment testing for an asset & required, the
Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s value-in-use (VIU) or its fair value less costs o sell. The fair value less costs
to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset at an arm’s-length transaction, while VIU
15 the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an
asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life, Where the carrving amount of an asset
exceeds ils recoverable amount, the asset s considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is recogmized by a charge against current operations for
the excess of the carrying amount of an asset over its recoverable amount in the year in which it
arises,

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by a credit to cwrrent operations to the extent
that it does not restate the asset to a carrying amount in excess of what would have been
determined {net of any accumulated depreciation and amortization) had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years.

Leases

Determination of Whether an Arrangement Containg a Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement 1s
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the

asset, A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

{a) There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

{b) A renewal option is excrcised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

{c) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified
assel; or

{(d) There is a substantial change to the asset.
Where a reassessment s made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the

change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).
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Group as a Lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classilicd as operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the
comsolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event. it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as
an interest expense,

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed. the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate assel bul only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision i presented in the consolidated statement of income, net of any
reimbursement.

‘apital ¢ -apital in Excess of Par Value

The Parent Company has issued capital stock that is classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new capital stock are shown in equity as a deduction, net of any
related tax benefit, from the proceeds.

Where the Group purchases the Parent Company’s capital stock (treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of applicable taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Parent Company’s stockholders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued. any consideration received.
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related tax effects. 13 included

in equity.

Amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as a capital in excess of par value,
Capital in excess of par value also arises from additional capital contribution from the
stockholders.

Retained Eamings

Retained carnings are accumulated profits realized out of normal and continuous operations of the
business after deducting therefrom distributions to stockholders and transfers to capital or other
accounts. Cash and stock dividends are recognized as a liability and a deduction from equity
when they are approved by the Group’s BOD and stockholders, respectively. Dividends for the
year that are approved after the end of the reporting period are dealt with as an event after the end
of the reporting period.

Retained carnings may also include effect of changes in accounting policy as may be required by
the standard’s transitional provisions.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, The Group is acting as principal in all
arrangements except for its brokerage transactions, The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Cormmiss ions
Commissions are recognized as income upon confirmation of trade deals. These are computed
based on a flat rate whichever is higher for every trade transaction.

Interest
Interest income is recognized as it accrues taking into account the effective yield of the asset.

Dividend
Dividend income 18 recognized when the right to receive payment is established, which is the date
of declaration,

Other Income
Revenue is recognized in the consolidated statement of income as they are eamed.

Cost and Expenses

Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outtlows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other
than those relating to distributions to equity participants. Cost and expenses are recognized when
the related revenue s earned or when the service is incurred. The majority of cost and expenses
ineurred by the Group such as commissions, personnel costs, professional fees, and computer
services, are overhead in nature and are recognized with regularity as the Group continues its
operations.

Share-Based Payment Transactions

Certain employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions. whereby emplovess render services in exchange for shares or
rights over shares (*equity-settled transactions”).

at the date at which they are granted. Invaluing equity-settled transactions, vesting conditions,
including performance conditions. other than market conditions {conditions linked to share prices),
shall not be taken into account when estimating the fair value of the shares or share options at the
measurement date. Instead, vesting conditions are taken into account in estimating the number of
equily instruments that will vest. The fair value is delermined using an appropriate pricing model,
further details of which are grven in Note 16 to the notes to consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in the consolidated statement of income,
together with a corresponding inerease in equity, over the period in which service conditions are
fulfilled, ending on the date on which relevant employees become fully entitled to the award
{vesting date). The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each end of
the reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the number of awards, based on the best available estimate of number of equity
instruments in the opinion of the management of the Group, will ultimately vest.
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Mo expense i recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting
iz conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting imespective of whether or not
the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum, expense is recognized as
if the terms had not been modified. In addition. an expense is recognized for any increase in the
value of the transaction as a result of the modification, measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-sctiled award is cancelled. it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The Group has applied PFRS 2, only to equity-settled awards granted after November 7, 2002
that had not vested on or before January 1, 2005,

Prior to Janary 1, 2003, the Group did not recognize any expense for share options granted but
disclosed required information for such options (see Note 16). The Group recognizes capital stock
upon the exercise of the stock options.

The dilutive effect of cutstanding stock options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted eamings per share (EPS) (sec Note 24).

Retirement Costs
The Parent Company has a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan.

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any),
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling
i= the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially delermined using the
projected unit credit method. This method reflects service rendered by employees to the date of
valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning the emplovees” projected salaries.

Diefined benefit costs comprise the following:

» Service cost

# Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset

* HRemeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service cosl, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as ‘Retirement costs” under ‘Personnel costs” in the
consolidated statement of income. Past service costs are recognized when plan amendment or
curtailment occurs.
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MNet interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit lability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Met interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as ‘Interest expense’ in the
consolidated statement of income.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the
consolidated statement of income in subsequent periods. Remeasurements recognized in OCI
after the mitial adoption of the Revised PAS 19 are retained in OCI which is presented as “Loss on
remeasurement of retirement obligation” under equity.

Plan assets arc asscts that are held by a long-term employes benelit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly
to the Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market
price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash
flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the
maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected
period until the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets s hgher
than the present value of the defined benefit obligation. the measurement of the resulting defined
benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a delined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separale asset at fair value when and enly when
reimbursement iz virtually certain.

The retirement plan of COLHK is a defined contribution retirement plan. Under a defined
contribution retirement plan, the entity’s legal and constructive obligation is limited to the amount
that it agrees to contribute to the fund. Thus, the amount of the post-employment benefits
received by the emploves 1s delermined by the amount of contributions paid by an entity to a post-
employment benefit plan, together with investment returns arising from the contributions.
Consequently, actuarial risk (that benefits will be less than expected) and investment risk (that
assets invested will be sufficient to meet expected benefits) fall on the employee.

The standard requires an entity to recognize short-term employee benefits when an employee has
rendered service in exchange of those benefits.

Basic EPS is computed by dividing earnings applicable to common stock by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding, after giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends,
stock splits or reverse stock splits during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends, stock
splits or reverse stock splits during the vear, and adjusted for the effect of dilutive options.

Outstanding stock options will have a dilutive effect under the treasury stock method only when
the average market price of the underlying common share during the period exceeds the exercise
price of the option. Where the effect of the exercize of all outstanding options has anti-dilutive
effect, basic and diluted EPS are stated at the same amount.
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Income Taxes

Current Income Tax

Cumrent income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The income tax rates
and income tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is provided. using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,

Deeferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including
asset revaluations. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax,
however, is not recognized on temporary differences that arise from the initial recognition of an
assel or liability in a transaction that is not a business combmation and, at the time of the
transaction, affeets neither the accounting income nor the taxable income or loss.

With respect to investments in foreign subsidiaries, deferred income tax liabilities are recognized
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrving amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assetl to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred income tax assets are reassessed at cach end of the reporting period and are recognized to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred income
tax asset to be recovered.

Deeferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability s settled, based on income tax rates and income
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,

Current income tax and deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is also
recognized in equity and not in the consolidated statement of income. Deferred income tax items
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in cquity.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to offset current income tax assels against current income tax labilities and deferred
income taxes related to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Contingencies

Contingent liabilitics are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent assets are not recogmized in the consolidated financial statements but are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable,
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Segment Reporling

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
geographical location of its operations, with each segment representing a unit that offers
stockbrokerage services and serves different markets. Financial information on geographical
segments is presented in Note 23, The Group operates in one business segment, being
stockbrokerage services: therefore. business segment information s no longer presented.

Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Post-year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the end of
the reporting period {(adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post-
vear-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed when material.

Lid

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the
Group to make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities, Future events
may occur which will cause the judgments and assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to
change. The effects of any change in judgments and estimates are reflected in the conselidated
financial statements as they become reasonably determinable

Judgments and estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. However, actual outcome can differ from these estimates.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Determining Functional Currency

Based on the economie substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Group, the
functional currencies of the Parent Company and COLHK have been determined to be Philippine
peso and HES, respectively, The Philippine peso and the HES are the currencies of the primary
economic environments in which the Parent Company and COLHE, respectively, operate, They
are the currencies that mainly influence the revenue and expenses of the Parent Company and
COLHE.

Assessment on Whether an Agreement is a Finance or Operating Lease

Management assesses al the inception of the lease whether an arrangement is a finance or
operating lease based on who bears substantially all risk and benefits incidental to the ownership
of the leased item. Based on management’s assessment, the risk and rewards of owning the items
leased by the Group are retained by the lessor and therefore accounts for as operating lease.

Operating Lease Commitments - Group as a Lessee

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its facility and administrative office
locations. The Group has determined that these are operating leases since they do not retain all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties.
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Classifving Financial Assets at FVPL

The Group classifics financial assets that are held for trading as financial assets at FVPL. These
financial assets are held for the purpose of selling in the short-term. As at December 21, 2014 and
2013, the Group has financial assets at FVPL amounting to P9.375.564 and P7,210,678,
respectively (see Note 6).

ti and Assumptions
The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period are discussed below.

Estimating Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

The Group reviews its receivables at each end of the reporting period to assess whether provision
for impairment losses should be recorded in the consolidated statement of income. In particular,
Judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
flows when determining the level of allowance required. The Group individually assesses
receivables when the value of the collateral falls below the management-set level. When no
payment is received within a specified timeframe, the outstanding balance is deemed impaired,
Collective asscssment is based on the age of the financial assets and historical expected losses
adjusted for current conditions.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the allowance for credit losses on trade receivables amounted
to P3.410.234 and P2,225 955, respectively. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables amounted to P1.438.423,878 and P1.351.853,823, respectively

(see Note 7).

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the allowance for credit losses on other receivables amounted
to P8.960,245. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrving amounts of other receivables
amounted to P12, 130,063 and P6, 790,722, respectively (see Note 7).

Estimating Usefil Lives of Property and Equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment based on the period over which
the assets are expected to be available for use. The Group reviews annually the estimated useful
lives of property and equipment based on factors that include asset utilization, internal technical
evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets tempered by
related industry benchmark mformation. It & possible that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in the Group’s estimates brought about by changes in the factors
mentioned. There are no changes in useful lives as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, Depreciation
and amortization amounted to P15.231.324 and P15.718.79 in 2014 and 2013, respectively. As
at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the net book values of property and equipment amounted to
P35,825,494 and P39.066,499, respectively (see Note 8).

Assessing Impairment of Prepayvements, Property and Equipment and Other Noncurrent Assets
The Group assesses impairment on prepayments, property and equipment and other noncurrent
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable.
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The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include
the following:

+ Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

e Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business: and

+ Significant negative industry or economie trends.

An impairment loss is recogmized whenever the carrying amount of an assel exceeds ils
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount # the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and VIU. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an
arm’s-length transaction less the costs of disposal while VIU is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the

end of its useful life.

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use of the assets, the Group is required to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially atfect the consolidated financial statements.

Based on management’s assessment, there are no indications of impairment on the Group’s
prepayments, property and equipment and other noncurrent assets as at December 31, 2014 and
2013,

No impairment loss was recognized in 2014 and 2013 for prepayments, property and equipment
and other noncurrent assets.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has no allowance for impairment losses on
prepayments and property and equipment. The canrying amounts of prepayments amounted to
P2,267,080 and P2,166,739 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The net book values
of property and equipment amounted to P35.825.494 and P39.066.499 as at December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively (see Note 8). As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, allowance for
impairment losses on other noncurrent assets amounted to P13,724,200, The net book values of
other noncurrent assets (excluding refundable deposits) amounted to P3,300,367 and P3,127.760
as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 10).

Determining Usefid Lives and Impairment of the Intangibles

Intangibles include exchange trading rights, which are carried at cost less any allowance for
impairment loss. Exchange trading rights are reviewed for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving values may be impaired.
The exchange trading rights are deemed to have indefinite useful lives as there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the Group,

The management's impairment test for the Parent Company's exchange trading right is based on
the available market value while COLHK s exchange trading right is based on VILT caleulation
that uses a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five (5) vears. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the
discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used.
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The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount of the Group’s exchange trading
rights are further explained in Mote 9. The Parent Company does not intend to sell its exchange
trading right in the near future, COLHK s right is nontransferable with an indelinite useful life,
As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying values of intangibles amounted to P23,338,991
and P23,269.449, respectively (see Note 9).

Estimating Recoverahility of Deferred Income Tax Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each end of the reporting
period and reduces deferred income tax assets to the axtent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient fulure taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
assets to be utilized. The Group has deferred income tax assets amounting to P37,473,878 and
P33,373,182 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 17).

Estimating Contingencies

The Group evaluates legal and administrative proceedings to which it is involved based on
analysis of potential resulis. Management and its legal counsels do not believe that any current
proceedings will have materal adverse effects on its financial position and results of operations.
It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in
the estimates or in the effectivencss of strategics relating to these proceedings (see Note 23).

Determining Share-Based Payment

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for
share-based payment requires determining the most appropriate valuation model for a grant of
equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This also
requires determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model inchiding the expected life
of the option, volatility and dividend vield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions
and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment are disclosed in Note 16,

As at December 31. 2014 and 2013, cost of share-based payment in equity amounted to
PB35.499 602 and P29.767,551, respectively (see Note 16).

Determining Retirement Obligation

The costs of delined retirement obligation as well as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future retirement increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation,
the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligation are highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each end of the
reporting period. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the retirement obligation of the Parent
Company amounted to P28, 192,690 and P27.620.893, respectively. Retirement costs amounted to
P6.061,397 and P3,668,393 in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of
government bonds that arc denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid. with
extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.

Further details about the assumptions vsed are provided in Mote 16.
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Determining Fair Values of Financial Instrumenis

PFRS requires that certain financial assets and liabilities be carried at fair value, which requires
the use of accounting judgment and estimates, While significant components of fair value
measurement are determined using verifiable objective evidence (e.g., foreign exchange rates,
inferest rates and volatility rates), the timing and amount of changes in fair value would differ with
the valuation methodology used. Any change in the fair value of these financial assets and
liabilities would directly affect the consolidated statement of income and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity (see Note 22).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

AT 2014 2013
Cash on hand and in banks B576,094,610 P1,427,104,041
Short-term cash investments 4.064,003,282  1.776.385,163

B4,640,187,802  P3.203 489,204

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term cash investments are
made for varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the Group’s immediate cash
requirements, and carn interest at 0.69% to 3.00% per annum in 2014 and 1.07% to 2.38% per
annum in 2013, Interest income of the Group from cash in banks amounted to P49,024,733,
P41,859.254 and 60,342,514 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 14). The Parent
Company has United States dollar (UUS5)-denominated cash in banks amounting to TUS$82,822 and
USS4,792 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 21),

[n compliance with SRC Rule 49.2 covering customer protection and custody of securities, the
Parent Company maintains special reserve bank accounts for its customers amounting to

P4.252 919947 and F2_800,523,622 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Parent
Company s reserve requirement is determined based on the SEC’s preseribed computations, As at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company 's reserve accounts are adequate to cover its
reserve requirements.

Cash in a Segregated Account

COLHK receives and holds money deposited by clients in the course of the conduet of the
regulated activities of its ordinary business. These clients” monies are maintained with a hicensed
bank. The Group has classified the clients” monies under current assets in the consolidated
statement of linancial position and recognized a corresponding payable to customers on grounds
that it is Lable for any less or misappropriation of clients” monies. The Group is not allowed to
use the clienis” monies to settle its own obligations,

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, cash in a segregated account for COLHK amounted to
P154.129.025 and P112,593 425, respectively.
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6. Financial Assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL pertain to investments in mutual funds and shares of stock of companies
listed in the PSE and major US Stock Exchanges. MNet gain (loss) recognized from fair value
changes of these financial instruments amounted to P2,379,294, (P§2,312) and P1,766,368 in
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Dividend income included under other revenues amounted to
B29.651, 156,803 and B28,589 in 2014, 2013 and 2012 respectively.

Financial assets at FVPL as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to P9.375,564 and
P7.210,678, respectively.

7. Trade and Other Receivables

2014 2013

Trade receivables:
Customers P1,413,525241 P1,229,452,643
Clearing house 13,076,269 123,005,869
Subscription receivables 168,552 =
Other brokers 15,064,050 1,621,266

1,441,834,112 354079778

Less allowance for credit losses on recervables from
cuslomers 3,410,234 2,225,955
1. 438,423,878 P1.351 853 823

Other receivables:
Accrued interest E9,050,681 P3,338,285
Advances to officers and employees 280,583
Others 11,755,044 12,412.682
21,000,308 15,750,967
Less allowance for cradit losses on other receivables 8.960,245 8,960 245
#12.130,063 B6, 790,722

The Parent Company has a credit line facility (involving margin accounts) for qualified customers
with the outstanding balance subject to an interest rate ranging from 1.00% to 1.50% per month.
Total credit line offered by the Parent Company amounted to B5,296,333,000 and P3,376,475.,000
as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Interest income from customers amounted to
P154,105,490, P156,796,015 and P123,746,651 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

{see Note 14).
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The Group’s trade receivables from customers, arising from the eredit line facility and its securily
valuation follows:

2014 013

Money Security Money Security
Balance  Valuation-Long Balance Valuation-Long

Cash and fillly secured aceounts:
More than 250% P446,753,436 F5, 207,812,487 P517,088,328 F3,981,204,253
Batwesn 200% and 250®c 149,439,902 344,207, 209 169,600, 557 394,350 385
Between 150% and 200% 443,316,145 B34 475,645 426,526,656 805,012,268
Batween 100% to 150% 313,503,049 351,951,335 58,594 093 66,008,079
Less than 1(0%s 6, 511K, 622 33,627,648 37,922 BR2 31,250 R80
Unseourad accournts LOBT - 19,710,227 -
1,413.525,241 6, 792,074,324 1,229,452 6543 5277 924 865

Less allowance for eradit losses on trade
receivables from customers 3,410,234 — L2125 4955 —
PLAIOM1S007  P5,792,074,324 $1227.726688 85277024865

Trade receivables from margin customers have no specific credit terms but customers are required
to maintain the value of their collateral within a specific level. Onee the value of the collateral
falls down this level, customers may cither deposit additional collateral or sell stock to cover their
account balance. Meanwhile, receivables from post-paid customers are required to be settled on
two (2) trading days’ term for COLHK and three (3) trading days” term tor the Parent Company.
The receivable balances become demandable upon failure of the customer to duly comply with
these requirements. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, P1,353,012,532 and P1,171,819.534,
respectively, of the total trade receivables from customers are fully covered by collateral.

Trade receivables from clearing house as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, were fully collected
subsequently in January 2015 and 2014, respectively, These are noninterest-bearing and are
collected on two (2) trading days” term and three (3) trading days” term following the settlement
convention of HK and Philippines clearing houses, respectively,

Other receivables as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 inchade the amount of P8, 960,245
representing additional corporate income tax paid under protest by the Parent Company for the
taxable yvear 2009. For the first, second and third quarters of the taxable vear 2009, the Parent
Company used the itemized method of deduction in determining its income tax payable for the
same period. In its final adjusted income tax return, it opted to use the forty percent (40%a)
optional standard deduction (OSD) to determing the final mcome tax payable for 2009, pursuant to
Republic Act Mo. 9504 effective July 7. 2008, as implemented by Revenue Regulations (RR) No.
16-08 dated November 26, 2008, However on March 14, 2010, RR. No. 2-2010 became effective
and amended Section 7 of KR Mo, 16-08, which required taxpayers to signify the election to claim
gither the OSD or itemized deduction during the Giling of the first quarter income tax retum which
must be consistently applied for all suceeeding quarterly returns and in the final income tax returns
for the taxable vear. Likewise, Revenue Memorandum Circular (RMC) No. 16-2010 was wssued
on February 26, 2010, giving retroactive application to RR MNo_ 2-2010.

The additional income tax paid under protest is for the sole purpose of avoiding any interest or
penalty which may be subsequently imposed in erroncously applying RE. No. 2-2010 and

RMC Mo, 16-2010 retroactively in violation of Section 246 of the 1997 Tax Code, as amended.
Payment of the additional income tax does not constitute an admission of any deficiency tax
liability for the taxable year 2009 nor shall the same be construed as a waiver of the right to apply
for and secure a refund of the tax erroneously paid for the period. Henee, on April 3, 2012, the
Parent Company filed with the Court of Tax Appeals (C'TA) a Petition for Review asking the CTA
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to require the Burean of Internal Revenue (BIR) to refund or issue a Tax Credit Certificate (TCC)
for the aforementioned amount representing excess income tax paid for taxable year 2009, On
April 21, 2014, a decision was issued by the CTA ordering the BIR to issue a TCC in favor of the
Parent Company amounting to P8,960,245, However, the BIR elevated the case to the Supreme
Court. Pending the outcome of the case, a 100% allowance for impairment loss was set up.

Other receivables as at December 31, 20014 and 2013 also include COLHK s provisional tax
profits paid amounting to P482 689 and P2 406,950, respectively.

Movemenis in the allowance for eredil losses Tollow:

214 2013
Customeri i hers Tt al it carers Others Tutal
Balances at beginning of year P22I5055  PRO6O,Z4S  P1L1E6.200 B3 504,808  BPROED24S P12 465143
Prowision 1,154,279 - 1164279 = = =
Recovery - = - (1,278,943 (1,278,943)
Balances at end of year P3410.234  P59GI245  PI23T0.47T9 B2 335 988 BE 960,245 B11,186.200
Recovery of allowance for credit losses is included under other revenues,
Property and Equipment
2014
Omline Trading Furniture,
Fquipment and Fixtures and Leasehold
Facilities Fquipment Improvemenis Total
Cost:
Al beginning of year B81, 789,836 B15,718,206 B26,059,499 #¥133,567,541
Additions b, 6. 300, 5459 1,053,765 424,488 12,104,102
Disposals (232,191) - (194, 196) (426,387)
Translation adjustments 26,139 32,818 3,120 62,077
Al end of year 42,214,633 2o, S04, THY 26,292,911 145,312,333
Accumubated depreciation and
amortization:
At beginning of year 54257737 19,749,011 20,494,204 04,501,042
Depreciation amd amortiztion 110,365,485 1,659,562 2,206,277 15,231,324
Disposals (193,478) = (113,281) {306, 759)
T ranslation adjustmenis 26,168 31,944 3,124 61,231
Al end of year 4, 435912 22,440,517 22,590,410 109,456, 839
Net book values E27,758,721 P4, 364,272 B3, 702,501 PI5, 815,494
2013
Cmlbine Trading Furmturs,
Equipment and Fixtures and Leaschold
Facilities Equipment Improvements Total
Cost
At beginning of year P, 575,931 P23.508,223 26,000,432 B 16,084,586
Additions 14,093,722 1,614,045 16,307,767
Translation adjustments 520,183 505 038 59067 1,175, 188
At end of year #1_ 7RO B36 25 T18. 206 26,059,499 133,567 541
Accuiruilated depreciation and
amortization:
At beginming of year 43,056,489 16,450,564 18,180,332 T7.687,385
Depreciation and amorti zation 10,753,894 2,710,007 2,254,895 15,718,796
Translat on adjustmsnts 447 354 SBR440 59067 1.094 861
At end of year 54,257,737 12,749,011 20,454,294 94,501,043
Net book values P‘ET%II]Q@ P5.060. 195 FS@&S;DS PA0. 066,450
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The depreciation and amortization were distributed as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Cost of services Bis4,511 F1.184.374 B2O98015
Operating expenses 15,046,813 14,534,422 14,259,874

$15,231,324 P15,718,796 P16,358 480

Intangibles

Philippine Operations

Om August 13, 2006, the Parent Company purchased the Trading Right of Mark Securities
Corporation amounting to BS,000,000. As discussed in Note 1, on December 13, 2006, the BOD
of the PSE, in its regular meeting, approved the application of the Parent Company as a PSE
Corporate Trading Participant. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the market value of the said
exchange trading rnght amounted to P8, 500,000,

Hong Kong Operations

COLHK s exchange trading right 1s carried at its cost of HK$3,190,000. The carrying value of the
exchange trading right is reviewed annually to ensure that this does not exceed the recoverable
amount, whether or not an indicator of impairment is present. The stock exchange trading right &
a non-transferable right with an indefinite useful life. 1t is closely associated with COLHE s
business activities to have a right to trade the shares in the HK Stock Exchange in its continuing
operation. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying value of COLHK exchange trading
right in Philippine peso amounted to P18,338,991 and P18,269,449, respectively.

The recoverable amount of exchange trading rights of COLHK has been determined based on a
WIU calculation. That calculation uses cash from projections based on a financial budget
approved by management covering a five (3)kvear period, and a discount rate ranging from 8.38%
to 11.50%. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which the exchange trading rights” recoverable amount is based would not cause its camying
amocunt to exceed its recoverable amount.

Movements in exchange trading rights follow:

2014 2013
At beginning of year B23.269,449 P21,952.936
Translation adjustment 69,542 1,316,513
At end of year B23,338,991 P23,260 449
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10, Other Noncurrent Asscts

2014 2013
Deposit to CTGE P13,724,200 P13,724,200
Refundable deposits:

Rental deposits 2.621,174 2,515,674
Other refundable deposits 2,659 828 2,404,703
5,281,002 4,920,377
Input VAT 3,300,367 3,127,760
22,305,569 21,772,337

Less allowance for impairment losses on other
noncurrent asscis 13,724,200 13,724,200
PR.581,369 8,048,137

As mentioned in Note 1, as a prerequisite to its accreditation as a clearing member of SCCP, the
Parent Company made an initial contribution of P8, 200,000 on October 20, 2008 to the CTGF of
the SCCP. The CTGF is a sk management tool of SCCP, whose primary purpose is (o protect
the settlement system from any default by a clearing member. The amount of contribution was
computed based on the previous six (6) months trading data and a caleulation for the ideal fund
level using the Value-at-Risk Model. The said amount was recaleulated after six (6) months based
on the effective rate of eleven percent (11.00%) applied to the actual netted trade value of the
clearing member. On August 20, 2009, the Parent Company made an additional contribution
amounting to P5,524.200 to top-up the deficiency in the initial contribution.

In addition to the collection of the imitial contribution and as part of the build-up plan for the
CTGF, SCCP colleets a monthly contribution at the rate of 1/500 of one percent (1.00%) of the
clearing member’s gross trade value less block sales and cross transactions of the same flag.
Under SCCP Eule 3.2, the cash contributions made by the clearing members to the CTGF are
nonrefundable. However, in consideration of the 100,00% increase in the CT'GF contributions
which took effect on Angust 1, 2007, the BOD of SCCP has approved the full refund of
contributions to the CTGF upon cessation of the business of the clearing member and upon
termination of its membership with SCCP. Such amendment has been submitted for the further
approval of the SEC. Pending the approval of the SEC, the rule on nonrefundability still applics.
In view of this, the Parent Company provided an allowance for impairment losses on other
noncurrent assets amounting to P13,724,200 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

Other refundable deposits include statutory deposits made to HE Exchanges, admission fees for
HK’s SFC and for HK Securities Clearing Company Ltd., and contributions to Central Clearing
and Settlement System Guarantee Fund.

11. Trade Payables

2014 2013
Customers B4.866,109,620 P3,348,307.648
Clearing house 74,818,726 50,428.911
Dividends - 29,957

P4,040,928 346 P3.398,766.516
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2014 2013
Muoney Security hemey Security
Balance  Valuation-Long Balance Waluation-Long
Payable to customers:
With meney balances B4.866,100.620  B47,025,9583,003 B3.348,307.648  P41,232,.586,585
No money balances - 1578211158 - 747,011,352

BA866,100.600 PAS607.194,171  P3.348,300.608  PA1.070.807 03

Generally, trade payables to customers are noninterest-bearing and have no specific credit terms,

Payable to customers with money balances amounting to P155, 997 727 and P122.070,046 as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were payable to COLHK s clients in respect of the
trust and segregated bank balances received and held for clients in the course of the conduct of
regulated activities. These balances are payable on demand (see Note 5).

Trade pavables to clearing house as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were fully paid subsequently
in January 20135 and 2014, respectively. These are noninterest-bearing and are settled on two (2)
trading days” term and three (3) tading davs” term following the settlement convention of HE and
Philippines clearing houses, respectively.

. Other Current Liabilities

2014 2013
Accrued expenses B30,179.314 P27.278.682
Due to BIE 21,506,162 18.916.897
Acerued management bonus 17,342,782 16,444,884
Trading fees 2.499.072 1671277
Others 309,363 269,268

B71,836,693 P64.581.008

Accrued expenses and acorued management bonus mainly include accruals for the officers and
employees® performance bonus and other operating expenses and deposits of clients which were
received after the cut-off time for the processing of collections and which were credited to the
clients” trading accounts on the next business day following the end of the reporting period.

Due to BIR comprise of withholding, percentage and ocutput taxes payable to the Philippine
Government.

Trading fees pertain to transaction costs and clearing fees on the purchase and sale of stocks that
are payable to the regulatory bodies,

Oither current liabilities are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled on fifteen ( 15) to sixty
{60} day’s term.
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13. Equity

Capital Stock
The details and movements of the Parent Company’s capital stock (number of shares and amounts
in thousands ) follow:

14 2013 2012
Shares Amount Shares Arnount Shares Armount

Common stock - B1 per share
Anthonzed 1,00 0NY 1 WD, DM 1,000,000  B1,000,000 1,000,000  B1,000,000
zsned and Owstanding
Balances at beginming of
yoar 468,650 468,650 467 ELD 467,810 458,550 458, 550
Issuance of common sharas
upon exercise of stock

options (see MNote 16) 5,900 3,90k 40 240 0,260 9,260
Balances at end of vear 474,550 £474,550 468 650 P4aR, 050 467 810 BAaT AL
Retained Eamings

In compliance with SREC Rule 49.1 B Reserve Fund, the Parent Company is required to annually
appropriate ten percent { 10%6) of its audited net income and transfer the same to appropriated
retained c:arnmgb account. Un December 11, 2006, the BOD approved the annual appropriation
commiencing on the year 2006,

In 2012, an appropriation of P30,454,004 was made based on the 2011 previously stated net
income of the Parent Company of P304.540,045. In 2013, an appropriation of P32,062.182 was
made based on the 2012 previously stated net income of the Parent Company of 320,621 815, In
2014, an appropriation of B32,508, 195 was made based on the 2013 audited net income of the
Parent Company of P323,081.947. Total unappropriated retained carnings amounied to
P629,371,5358 and PoR0,802,6593 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 20,

On February 7, 2012 COLHK s BOD declared a scrip dnidend of HEKS5,000,000
(78,000,000 shares multiplied by HK80.064 scrip dividend per share) to stockholders as of record
date of February 7. 2012

Omn March 30, 2012, the BOD declared a regular and a special dividend amounting to B0.12 per
share held or P56,046,000 (467,050,000 shares multiplied by P0.12 cash dividend per share) and
P0.48 per share held or P224, 184,000 (467,050,000 shares multiplied by P0.48 cash dividend per
share), respectively, to stockholders as of record date of April 18, 2012, These dividends were
paid on May 14, 2012,

On March 19, 2013, the BOD declared a regular and a special dividend amounting to 20.12 per
share held or B56,238,000 (468,650,000 shares multiplicd by B0.12 cash dividend per share) and
P0.51 per share held or B239.01 1,500 (468,650,000 shares multtphed by P0.51 cash dividend per
share), respectively, to stockholders as of record date of April 4. 2013. These dividends were paid
on April 19, 2013,

On March 31, 2014, the BOD declared a regular and a special dividend amounting to P0.12 per
share held or P36,238,000 (468,650,000 shares multiplied by P0.12 cash dividend per share) and
P0.48 per share held or 224,952,000 (468,650,000 shares multiplied by P0.48 cash dividend per
share), respectively, to stockholders as of record date of April 14, 2014, These dividends were
paid on April 15, 2014,
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14. Interest Income

2014 2013 2012
Customers (see Note 7) B154,105,490 F156,796,015 B123.746.651

Banks - net of final tax
(see Note 4) 49,024,733 41,859,254 6(),342,514
B203,130,223 P198.655.269 F184.089.165

15. Personnel Costs
2014 2013 2012
Salaries and wages ER2,432,452 P32 448 387 PT78,387.838
Retirement costs (see Note 16) 4,487,206 4235 520 3,168,564
Other benetits 6,536,142 5.597.155 5,482 439
BO3,455,830 PO2.281.071 PR7.038.841
The above accounts were distributed as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Cost of services B63,239.706 P65.446.518 P57.256.553
Operating expenses 30,216,124 26 .834,55_ 3 29_,?32,283
B93,455,830 92,231,071 PR7.038.841

16. Employee Benelits

Stock Ophions

On July 12, 2000 and July 3, 2006, the Group granted stock options (SOP) shares equal to
27,250,000 and 18,750,000, respectively, in favor of directors, senior managers and officers of the
Group as well as other qualified individuals determined by a committee constituted by the BOD to
adminster the SOP. As at December 31, 2006, a total c-fdﬁ_.ﬁ&[]_.i][}ﬂ stock options were granted.
The agreement provides for an exercise price of BLOO per share. These options will be scttled in
equity once cxercised. All options are exercisable one and a half {1%4) years from July 12, 2006,
the effective date of listing of the Parent Company s shares at the PSE, and will terminate ten (10)
vears from the said date. There was no new SOP granted in 2014, 2013 and 2012,

There have been no cancellations or modifications to the plan in 2014, 2013 and 2012,

The following tables illustrate the number of and movements in stock options:

1st Tranche

2014 2013 2012
Outstanding at beginning of year 1,850,000 2,690,000 Q450,000
Exercised during the year (see
Note 13) {400,000) ( 840,000 (6,760,000
Outstanding at end of vear 1,450,000 1,530,000 2,690,000
Theese gock eptions have nol been recognized in accordmce with PFRS 2, Share-Based P 4, s threse oplions were g !

on or hifere November 7, 2000, These aptions Inve ot baen mbsequently nmﬂ‘!ﬁed'mdfﬁﬂ'qu o prend maieed fer e mluﬂd
Sow in accordmice with FFRS 2




COL Financial Group, Inc.

2nd Tranche

2014 2013 2012
Outstanding at beginning of year 5,500,000 3,300,000 8,000,000
Exercised during the vear (see
Note 13) (5,500, 0040y - {(2.300,000)
L'Jutstnndinﬁ at end of vear — 5 500000 &, 500,000

— —
The s wock opitons are recognized in accordance with FERS 2, Share-Based Payvwent

All options have a contractual term of ten ( 10) years. The weighted average remaining contractual
life of options outstanding is 2.5 vears, 3.5 years and 4.5 vears as at December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

The fair value of cach option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Merton
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The fair value of options granted on July 12, 2000 and July 3. 2006 amounted to B0O_89
per share and P1.04 per share, respectively.

The assumptions used to determine the fair value of the 27,250,000 stock options granted on

July 12, 2000 were (1) share price of P1.07 obtained through the use of the Discounted Cash Flow
mode] since the stock was not quoted at the time; (2) exercise price of P1.00; (3) expected
volatility of 44.00%; (4) option life of ten (10) vears; and (5) risk=free interest rate of 15.61%.

The assumptions used to determine the fair value of the 18,750,000 stock options granted on

July 3, 2006 were (1) share price of P1.36 as the latest valuation of stock price at the time of the
imitial public offering; (2) exercize price of B1.00; (3) expected volatility of 24.00%:; (4) option life
of ten (10) years: and (3) risk-free interest rate of 11.04%.

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome. Since the stock is not quoted at the time
of grant date, the Group used the historical volatility of the nearest market comparable available.
Risk-free interest rate is the equivalent ten ( 10)=year zero coupon rate at the time of grant date.

Movements in the cost of share-based payment included in equity are as follows:

2014 2013 2012

Balances at beginning of vear #29,767,551 P33,263,658 B63,541,6835
Movement on deferred income tax asset
on intrinsic value of outstanding options {19,977,949) (4.068,107) (29.420,027)
Cost of share-based payment recognized

as capital in excess of par value (5,720,000) - i 2,600,000)
Stock option expense (see Note 18) 1,430,000 572,000 1,742 000
Movements during the year (24,267,949) (3.496,107) (30,278.027)
Balances at end of vear £5,499,602 B29.767.551 3,263 658
Retirement Benefits

The Parent Company has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its regular employees. The benefits are based on a certain percentage of the
final monthly basic salary for every vear of credited service of employees. The defined benefit
obligation 18 determined using the projected unit credit method. There was no plan termination,
curtailment or settlement for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
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Under the existing regulatory framework, RA 7641, The Retirement Pay Law, requires a provision
for retirement pay to qualified private sector employess in the absence of any retirement plan m
the entity, provided however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective
bargaining and other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law, The law
does not require minimum funding of the plan.

The following tables summarize the components of the Parent Company’s net retirement costs
recognized in the consolidated statements of income and the amounts recognized in the

consolidated statements of financial position:

Retirement costs:

2014 2013 2012

Current service cost (see Nole 15) £4,487,206 P4,235,529 P3,168.564
Met interest expense 1,574,391 1.433.064 019,511
£6,061,597 B35 668,593 P4 088075

Current service cost is shown under “Personnel costs” while net inferest expense s shown under
“Interest expense” in the consolidated statements of income.

Meovements in the retirement obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of finaneial
position:

2014 2013

Retirement obligation at beginning of vear B27,620,893 P23,113,934
Retirement costs 6,061,597 5.668.593
Met actuarial gains (5,489 50 (1,161.634)
B28,192,690 B27.620.893

Retirement obligation:

2014 2013

Present value (PV) of defined benefit obligation B34.875,040 F34,300 721
Fair value of plan assets (6,682,350) (6, T78.828)

P28,192,690 P27.620.893

Changes in the PV of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2014 2013
Opening PV of defined benefit obligation B34.399,721 B29 526269
Current service cost 4.487.206 4,235,529
Interest cost 1,960,784 1.830.629
Remeasurement losses (gains) on:
Financial assumptions (3,146,102) 1970, 727
Experiencs adjustments (2,564,444) (3,166.302)
Demographic assumplions - 77,119
Benehits paid (262,125) {74,250)

B34.875,040 P34,399.721
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Changes in the fair value of plan assels follow:

2014 2013
Balances at beginning of year P6,778,828 P6,412,335
Expected interest income 386,393 397.565
Benefits paid (262,125) (74,2500
Remeasurement gain (loss) on plan assets (220,746) 43,178
P6,682,350 PG, 778,828
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as
follows:
2014 2013
Short-term cash investments 99.97% 99.96%
Cash in bank 0.03% 0.04%
1000 e 10000

The plan assets is exposed to concentration risk since 99.97% of its plan assets is investment in
common trust funds. The maximum exposure is equal to the carrying value of the investment in
common trust funds.

The principal assumptions used in determining retirement obligation for the Parent Company s
plan is shown below:

2014 2013

Discount rate 5.7T0% 6.80%

Future salary increases 5.00% 7.00%
Meortality rates

Male 0.06%0-0.74% 0. 06%4-0.74%

Female 0.05%-0.61% 0.05%=0.61%

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as at December 31, 2014 and 2013
assuming all other assumptions were held constant,

2014:
Inerease (decrease) Increase (decrease)
in significant in defined benefit
assumptions obligation
Discount rates +0.50% (P1,886,578)
-0.50%% 2,068,187
Future salary increases +0.50% 1,901,252
-0.50% (1,753,174)
Mortality rate +1 year (60,451)
-1 vear 59,868
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2013

[nerease (decrease) in Increase (decrease)

significant in defined benefit

assumptions obligation
Discount rates #0509 (F2002,209)

-0.50% 2,205,131

Future salary increases +0.50% 2014923
-0.50% {L.854.5358)
Mortality rate +1 vear (87.480)
-1 year 80,067

Amounts for the current and previous four (4) years are as follows:

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

PV of defined

benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Unfunded status

B34,875,040 F34,300721 P29.526,260 P20,236,661 P14,368,751
(6,682,350) (6.778,828) (6,412.335) (6,714.435) (6,538.937)
P28,192,600 P27,620,803 P23,113,034 P13,522,226 P7,820,814

Experience adjustments
on plan habilities

Change in financial
assumptions

(B2,564,444) (P3,166,302) P3,361,009  P170,425 B2,501,782

on plan liabilities (3,146,102) 1970727 2018442 2536603 1,611,469
Change in demographic

ASSUMpLions on

plan liabilities - 77,119
Actual return on plan assets 165,647 440,743 332,400 4901, 495 353,068

The Parent Company does not perform any asset-liability matching strategy. The overall
investment policy and strategy of the retirement plan is based on the client suitability assessment,
as provided by its trust bank, in accordance with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas requirements. It
does not, however, ensure that there will be sufficient assets 1o pay the retirement benefits as they
fall due while attempting to mitigate the various risks of the plan. The retirement plan asscts
consist of 99,97% short-term cash investrments and (L03% cash in regular savings account as at
December 31, 2014,

The Parent Cornpany has no funding policies. As at March 4, 2013, the Parent Company has not
vet reasonably determined the amount of the 2015 contributions to the retirement plan,
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Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Zexo (0) to five (3) years B11,0401,133 P10,972,870
Six (6) to ten (10) vears 23,079,703 27.497 231

P34.080,836 P38,470,101

COLHK makes monthly contribution to a fund under the mandatory provident fund schemes
ordinance enacted by the HK Government. The plan is a defined contribution retirement plan.
Under the plan, COLHK should contribute five percent (5%) of the monthly relevant income of all
its qualified employees. The contribution recognized as retirement costs under “Personnel costs’
amounted to 315,341, P277.402 and P261,788 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

17.

Income Taxes

The Group's current provision for income tax represents the regular corporate income tax in 2014
and 2013,

The components of the Group’s net deferred income tax assets follow:

2014 2013
Accumulated translation adjustment B9.349.262 PO.847.071
Retirement obligation 8,808,141 8,721,405
Cost of share-based payment 5,499,602 25,471,551
Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables
from customers 1,023,070 BT, 786
Unrealized loss (gain) in the valuation of FVPL (309,511) 23,426
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gains) 78649 (GED)
Stock option expense - 1,287,000
Others 12,766,933 7,280,182

B37,145,366 P53,303,732

Realization of the future tax benefits related to the net deferred income tax assets is dependent on
many factors, including the Group®s ability to generate taxable income, within the carryover
period.

Others pertain to deferred income 1ax asset recognized on the net loss position of COLHE.,
The Parent Company has temporary difference arising from allowance for impairment losses on
deposit to CTGF amounting to B13,724 200 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, for which no

deferred income tax asset was recognized since management believes that it is probable that these
temporary difference will not be realized in the future (see Note 10).
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A reconciliation of provision for income tax computed at the statutory ncome Lax rales o nel
provision for income tax shown in the consolidated statements of income follows:

2014 2013 2012

Income tax at statutory income tax rate  B102,295219 P115,794,874 P101,884.390
Additions to (reductions in) income tax
resulting fiom:

40% OSD (7,197,986) (22,442,235) -
[nterest income subjected to final
tax (14,707,049)  (12,577,776) (18,102,754)
Loss (income) of COLHK subject to
income tax 9,911,299 T.679.068 1.830.527
Exercise of stock option (5,821,200) - (33,310,000)
Provision for (benefit from) income
tax of COLHK (5436244)  (4340,710) 3,195,537
Non=taxable income (8,736) (111) (2,029)
Others (318,301) (1,720,001) (2.058,028)
Provizion for income tax ETR.T17,002 PB82393,019 P33.437.643

In 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company availed of the OSD method in claiming its deductions.
In 2012, the Parent Company availed of the itemized deductions method in claiming its
deductions.

15, Related Party Disclosures

a. The summary of significant transactions and account balances with related parties are as
follows:
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Commission Interest Commission Profeszional Trade Trade
Category Income meome expense fees payables receivables  Terms Conditicns
Key management personnel
2014 F2,005 582 8492225 [ [ £15,617,120 P45389,054  3-day; noninterest-bearng/ Secured; not
2013 P4.087,083 P3.543,170 P P B51,109,892 Pa,378,345 Collectible or payable on guarantesd
2012 B3 733575 P1,033,467 P B BS6, 709, 837 P15,284 711 demand; interest-bearing
Other related parties:
Affiliates with common officers, directors and stockholders
2014 22,470,606 3,834,492 9,440 4,155,700 1,909,816 36,772,900  3-day; noninterest-bearing/ Secured; not
2013 29 858,606 1,350,621 279,710 4.516,537 18,464,405 71,560,697 Collectible or payable on guaranteed
demand; nterest-bearing/
Payable upon hilling,
2012 42,923,001 1,879,203 16,585 7.686,867 29,368,151 9149278 noninterest-bearing
Directors
2014 16,491,004 8,534 - - 107,035,196 —  3-day, noninterest-bearing/ Secured; not
2013 20,017,639 25,008 41,210,586 19,710,226 Collectible or pavable on guaranteed
2012 22,487,994 518.747 23,310,923 34.325.740 demand; interest-bearing
Total £41,057,192 £4.335251 #9440 £4,155,700  P124,562,132 £82,161,954
Total P53,963,418 P4.058 889 P279.710 P4.516,537 F110.784,973 P33 649 268
Total 69144 570 P3.441.417 P16,585 B7.686,867 P109.388011 B58,750.729
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b. Compensation of key management personnel of the Group follows:

2014 2013 2012
Short-term employee benefits P54,15886]1 P39.186,893  P50,528.506
Retirement costs 2,007,247 1.896,639 2,420,795
Stock options (see Note 16) 1. 430,000 572,000 1,742,000

#57,506,108 P61.655,532  P54,691,301

c. TheParent Company’s retirement fund is being held in trust by a trustee bank.
As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying amount of the retirement fund amounted to
P6,682,350 and P6, 718,984, respectively. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the fair value
of the retirement fund amounted to B6.682.350 and 6,778,828, respectively.

The retirement fund consists of the following (see Note 16):

2014 2013

Short-term cash investments 99.97% 99.96%
Cash in bank 0.03% 0. 04%
T W 1000, (W2

In 2014 and 2013, there were no transactions between the retirement fund and the Parent
Company.

19. Leases

The Group leases its office premises under separate operating lease agreements expiring on
various dates and whose lease terms are negotiated every one (1) to three (3) years. Rental costs
charged to operations amounted to P11,597.494, P10,820,260 and P10,024,186 in 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

The tuture minimum lease payments are as follows:

2014 2013
Within one (1) year P12,011,340 P11,697,986
After one (1) year but not more than five (5) vears 09.242.871 14.185.388

B2]1.254,211 P235,883.374

20. Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that the Group maintains
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business, pay existing obligations and maximize
shareholder value. The Group manages its capital siructure and makes adjustments to it, n light
of changes in economic conditions. Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
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The Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations of the SRC effective March 6. 2004 include,
among others, revisions in the terms and conditions for registration and subsequent renewal of
license applicable to both exchange trading participants and non-exchange broker dealers as
follows: (a) to allow a net capital of P2.5 million or 2.50% of aggregate indebtedness, whichever
is higher, for broker dealers dealing only in proprietary shares and not holding securities. (b) lo
allow the SEC to set a different net capital requirement for those authorized to use the Risk-Based
Capital Adequacy (RBCA) model, and (c) to require unimpaired paid-up capital of P100.0 million
for broker dealers. which are either first time registrants or those acquiring existing broker dealer
firms and will participate in a registered clearing agency: P10.0 million plus a surety bond for
existing broker dealers not engaged in market making transactions; and P2.5 million for broker
dealers dealing only in proprietary shares and not holding securities,

The SEC approved Memorandum Circular No. 16 dated November 11, 2004 which provides the
guidelines on the adoption in the Philippines of the RBCA Framework for all registered brokers
dealers in accordance with SRC. These guidelines cover the following risks: (a) position or
muarket risk, (b) credit risks such as counterparty. settlement. large exposure, and margin financing
risks, and (c) operational risk.

The Parent Company being a registered broker in securitics is subject to the stringent rules of the
SEC and other regulatory agencies with respect to the maintenance of specific levels of RBCA
ratios, RBCA is a ratio that compares the broker or dealer’s total measured risk to its liquid
capital. As a rule, the Parent Company must maintain an RBCA ratio of at least one hundred ten
percent (110.00%) and a net liquid capital (WLC) of at least P3.0 million or five percent {5.00%0)
of its aggregate indebtedness, whichever is higher. Also, the Aggregated Indebledness { Al) of
every stockbroker should not exceed two thousand percent (2,000,00%) of its NLC. In the event
that the minimum RBCA ratio of one hundred ten percent (110.00%) or the minimum NLC is
breached, the Parent Company shall immediately cease doing business as a broker and shall notify
the PSE and SEC. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company is compliant with the

foregoing requirements.

The Parent Company’s capital pertains to equity per books adjusted for deferred income tax assets
and assets not readily convertible into cash.

The RBCA ratio of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014 2013
Equity eligible for NLC B967 5TR.520 POS0,337,344
Less incligible asscts 192,360,547 1940, 706,380
NLC BTI5,217,973 BT759.630.964
Position risk £3,549.916 P128.588
Operational risk 130,743,519 105,862,204
Counterparty risk - 3,814
Total Risk Capital Requirement (TRCR) #134.293 435 P105,994 606
Al P4.864,850, 475  P3,256,492 851
5.00% of Al P243.242,524  P162824.643
Required NLC 243,242,524 162,824,643
Net Risk-Based Capital Excess P531,975450  P39%5,806,321
Ratio of Al to NLC 628.00% 420.00%
RBCA ratio (NLC/TRCR) S77.00% T17.00%
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The following are the definition of terms used in the above computation:

1. Ineligible assets
These pertain to fixed assets and assets which cannot be readily converted into cash.

2. Operational risk requirement
The amount required to cover a level of operational risk which is the exposure associated with
commencing and remaining in business arising separately from exposures covered by other
risk requirements. It is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and systems which include, among others, risks of fraud. operational or settlement
failure and shortage of liquid resources, or from external events.

3. Position risk requirement
The amount necessary to accommeodate a given level of position risk which is the risk a broker
dealer is exposed to and arising from securities held by it as a principal or in ils proprietary or
dealer account.

4. Al
Total money liabilities of a broker dealer arising in connection with any transaction
whatsoever, and includes, among other things. money borrowed, money pavable against
securities loaned and securities failed to receive, the market value of securities borrowed to the
extent to which no equivalent value is paid or credited {other than the market value of margin
securities borrowed from customers and margin securities borrowed from non-customers),
customers” and non-customers” free credit balances, and credit balances in customers” and
non-customers” account having short positions in securities subject to the exclusions provided
in the said SEC Memorandum,

On May 28, 2009, the SEC approved the PSE’s Rules Governing Trading Rights and Trading
Participants, which supersede the Membership Rules of the PSE. Section 8(c) of Article III of
the said rules requires trading participants to have a minimum unimpaired paid-up capital, as
defined by the SEC, of P20 million effective December 31, 2009, and P30 million effective
December 21, 2011 and onwards. In 2014 and. 2013, the Parent Company is compliant with the
new capital requirement.

In addition, SRC Rule 49.1 (B), Reserve Fund of such circular, requires that every broker dealer
shall annually appropriate a certain minimum percentage of its audited profit after tax and transfer
the same to Appropriated Retained Earnings. Minimum appropriation shall be 30.00%, 20.00%
and 10.00% of profit after tax for brokers/dealers with unimpaired paid up capital of P10 million
to B30 million, between P30 million to P50 million and more than P50 million, respectively

(see Note 13).

The Parent Company s regulated operations have complied with all externally-imposed capital
requirements as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

COLHE monitors capital using liquid capital as provided for under HE s Securities and Futnres
Ordinance (Cap. 371) and Securitics and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules

(Cap. 57T1N). COLHKs policy is to keep liquid capital at the higher of the floor requirement of
HES$3,000,000 and computed variable required capital. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
COLHK is compliant with the said requirement.
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21. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The main purpose of the Group’s financial mstruments is to fund its operations. The Group™s
principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, cash in a segregated account,
financial assets at FVPL, trade receivables, other receivables, refundable deposits under other
noncurrent assets, trade payables and other current liabilities, which arise from operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk. equity
price risk and foreign currency risk. The BOD reviews and agrees on the policies for managing
cach of these risks and they are summarized below:

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the potential loss anising from any failure by counterparties to fulfill their
obligations. as and when they fall due. It is inherent to the stock brokerage business as potential
losses may arise due to the failure of its customers and counterparties to fulfill their trading
obligations on settlement dates or the possibility that the value of collateral held to secure
obligations becoming inadequate due to adverse market conditions,

The business model of the Group minimizes its exposure to eredit risk, The Group’s customers,
except those granted by a credit line facility by the Parent Company, are required to deposit funds
to their accounts and thewr purchases are limited to their cash deposit. In order to manage the
potential credit risk associated with the Parent Company’s margin lending activities, the Group
has established policies and procedures in evaluating and approving applications for margin
financing as well as the review of credit performance and limits. In addition, the Parent Company
requires its margin customers a Two Peso (P2) security cover for every One Peso (P1) exposure,
The security cover can cither be in cash or a combination of cash and marginable stock identified
by the Parent Company using a set of criteria.

Aging Analvses of Financial Assets
The aging analyses of the Group's financial assets as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are
summarized in the following tables:

2014
Past due but not mpaired
Meither
st dlue: mor 1531 Mlore than
impaired 414 davs days 31 days Tnpaired Tustal
Loans and receivables;
Cash and cash
cquivalenis Pl 640,157 892 P- = B P- P4640,187 592
Cash in segregated
accoumnt 154,129,025 - - - - 154,129,025
Trade recelvables 53,422,136 157,420,815 267,111,027 Gall 450,940 J410.204 1L 441.8M,112
Oiher receivables 12,130,063 - - - B.060,245 FANL LI
Refundalile deposits 5,251,002 - - - - 5,281,002
Financial asseds ol FYPL 93T 564 = - — - 8375564
Total PS177935916 PI1S7429815  P267.111,027  P660.450.900 F11370.479 B6.271 6087 903
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2013
Past cue but nol imgaired
Medther
past doe nor 1531 More than
impaired 4«14 days days 31 days Impasred Toilal
Loans and recervables:
Cash and cash
equivalents P3,203.459.204 [ # P- 3203 489204
Casdi in segregated
accounl 112503 435 - - - - 112593415
Trade receivables 261,703,716 111,297 612 145,552 687 829,299,798 2325955 1354079778
Caher receivables 5,750,722 - - - 89060, 145 15,750,567
Refindable deposits 4,930,377 - - - - 4,930,377
Financial as=cts at FWVPL 7,210,678 - - - - 7,210,678
Tuital P3 558,93 077 PI111,257 612 P149,552 697 PE19,259. 798 P11 186,200 B 698 044 429
The table below shows the credit quality by class of the financial assets of the Group:
2014
Nelther Past Due nor Specifically
Imypair i
Substandard Individually
High Crade  Stamdard Grade Caraide Dnnpalr el Tostad
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents P, 640,187 892 P B- P-  Pd,640,187,892
Cash in a segregated account 154,129,025 - - 154,129,025
Trude receivables 1,438,423 8T8 - - 3410244 1,441,534,112
Ceher receivables - 12,130,063 - 8,960,245 21,10, B
Hefndable depasits 5,241 002 — - - S.241.002
6,238,021, 797 12, 130063 12,370,479 6,162,522 239
Financial assels ol FYPL 9,373,564 - — — 9375564
Fi6,247.397 361 F12,130.063 P— F12.370,479 ?ﬁ,_Z'.'J,ETT.'FIB
2013
Heither Past Due nor Specifically
Trngired
Substandard Indivicheally
High Grade  Standard Grade Grade Impaired Tatal
Loans and recervables:
Cash and cazh cr\un'n.‘a.lcul:s #3,203, 489,204 # B P #3,203 489,204
Cash in n segregabed accoml 112,593 425 112,593,425
Trade receivables 1.351,853,823 - - 2225955 1354075778
(Other receivablies - 6, 70,722 - 8 060,245 15,750,967
Refundable deposits 4,.920.377 - — - 4520377
4,672,856, 819 6. 790,722 - 10,186,200  4,600.853,751
Financial assets al FVPL 1210678 — — — T2L06TE
Pl 680,067,507 Pg, 700,722 [ B0, 186,200 B4, 698,044,420

The Group's bases in grading its financial asscts arc as follows:

Loans and Receivables
High grade

The Group’s loans and receivables, which are neither past due nor impaired, are classified as high
arade, due to its high probability of collection (i.e. the counterparty has the evident ability to
satisfy its obligation and the security on the receivables are readily enforceable).

Cash and cash equivalents and cash in a segregated account are considered high grade since these
are deposited with reputable banks duly approved by the BOD and have low probability of

insolvency.
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Trade recervables from margin customers have no specific credit terms but customers are required
to maintain the value of their collateral within a specific level. Onee the value of the collateral
falls down this level, customers may either deposit additional collateral or sell stock to cover their
account balance. Meanwhile, receivables from post-paid customers are required to be settled on
two (2) trading days” term for COLHE and three (3) trading days” term for the Parent Company.
The receivable balances become demandable upon failure of the customer to duly comply with
these requirements. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, P1,413,523,154 and P1,209,742.416 of
the total receivables from customers is secured by collateral comprising of cash and equity
securitics of listed companies with a total market value of $6,792,074,324 and P5,277.924, 865,
respectively (see Note 7). Transactions through the stock exchange are covered by the guarantes
fund contributed by member brokers and maintamed by the clearing house., There are no past due
accounts as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

Refundable deposits under other noncurrent assets 1s classified as high grade since the amount
shall be kept intact by: (1) the lessor throughout the term of the contract and shall be returned after
the term: and (2) the government institutions as a requirement to conduct stock brokerage business
and shall be returned after the Group ceases 1o operate its business,

Standard grade
These are loans and receivables from counterparties with no history of default and are not past due

as at the end of the reporting period.

Financial Assets at FVPL

High grade

Companies that are consistently profitable, have strong fundamentals and pays out dividends.
As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group’s financial assets at FVPL are classified as high
grade since these are with listed companmies of good reputation.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from default of the counterparty has a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of the particular instrument plus any revocable loan
commitment or credit facility.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the component of the consolidated
statements of financial position:

2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents (sce Note 4} F4.640,150,645 B3.203,452.023
Cash in a segregated account (see Note 3) 154,129,025 112,393,425
Financial assets at FVPL (sce Note 6) 0,375,564 7.210,678
Trade receivables (see Note 7) 1,438,423,878  1,351,853,823
Other receivables (see Note 7) 12,130,063 6,790,722
Refundable deposits (see Note 10} 5,281,002 4,920,377
6,259,490,177 4. 686, 821.048

Unutilized margin trading facility 4,280,085476  4.288.422.787

P10,539,575,653 P8,975,243,833

*Excluding cank o hand

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.
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Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group may encounter difficulties in raising funds
to meet commitments from financial instruments or that a market for derivatives may not exist in
some circumstances.

The Group manages its liquidity profile to meet the following objectives: a) to ensure that
adequate funding s available at all times; b) to meet commitments as they arise without incurring
unnecessary costs; and ¢ to be able to access funding when needed at the least possible cost.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, all of the Group’s financial liabilities, which consist of trade
payables and other current liabilities (except statutory payables), are contractually payable on
demand and up to sixty (60) days” term.

Correspondingly, the financial assets that can be used by the Group to manage its liquidity risk as
at December 31, 2014 and 2013 consist of cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at FVPL and
trade receivables,

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss to future earings, to fair values or to future cash flows that may
result from changes in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may
change as a result of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchanges rates, commodity
prices, equity prices and other market changes. The Group’s market risk originates from its
holdings of equity instruments and foreign currency-denominated financial instruments.

Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk Lo earnings or capital arising from changes in stock exchange mdices
relating to its quoted equity securities. The Group’s exposure to equity price risk relates primarily
to its financial assets at FVPL which pertain to investments in shares of stock of companies listed
in the PSE, major US Stock Exchanges and mutual funds. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
risk to an acceptable level. Movement in share price is monitored regularly to determine the
impact on its financial position.

Since the carrying amount of financial assets subject to equity price risk is immaterial relative to
the consolidated financial statements, management believes that disclosure of equity price risk
sensitivity analysis for 2014 and 2013 is not significant,

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group's policy is to maintain forcign currency exposure within acceptable limits and within
existing regulatory guidelines. The Group believes that its profile of foreign currency exposure on
ils assels and liabilities is within conservative limits for a financial institution engaged in the type
of business in which the Group is engaged.

The Group’s exposure o foreign currency exchange risk arises from ils USS-denominated cash in
banks amounting to USS82,822 and US$4,792 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 4).

Since the amount of US$-denominated cash in bank subject to foreign currency risk is immaterial

relative to the consolidated financial statements, management believes that disclosure of foreign
currency risk analysis for 2014 and 2013 is not significant.
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22, Fair Value Measurement

The following table shows the carrying values and fair values of the Group’s assets and Labilities,
whose carrying values does not approximate its fair values as at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Camying Values Fair Values
2014 2013 2014 X3
Financial Asseis
Loars and receavables:
Refimdable deposits P5281, 0402 B4,920,377 B4 483,853 B4,586,488
Intangibles
Exd‘!ar%e tmd'u'lﬁ_riﬁht 5, (M), (R0 B3, 000, 0000 B8, 500,000 B, ), (00

Financial Instrumenis Whose Carrying Amount Approcimate Fair Valae

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, cash in a segregated account, trade
receivables, other receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities, which are all subject to
normal trade credit terms and are short-term in nature, approximate their far values.

Financial Assets at FVPL

The Group's financial assels at FVPL are carried at their fair values as at December 31, 2014 and
2013. Fair value of financial assets at FVPL 1z based on the closing quoted prices of stock
investments published by the PSE, major US Stock Exchanges and mutual funds.

Refundable Depasits

The fair value of the refundable deposils is based on the present value of the future cash flows
discounted using credit adjusted risk=free rates for a similar type of instrument using 3.33% and
2.37% as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. There are no changes in the valuation
technigques in 2014 and 2013,

Fxchange Trading Right Under Intangibles
The tair value of the exchange trading right for the Parent Company is based on the available
market value.

Fair Value Hierarchy
All assets and Labilities for which fair value is measured or diselosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy as follows:

201
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assert meeasured at fair valne:
Financial assets at FVFL PO375.564 [ [
Aswet for which fair values are disclosed:
Intangibles
Exchange trading right 8,504, (40 - -
Refundahle deposits = - 4,453,853
B17.575.504 B P4.483. 853
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2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Asxet measured ot fair value:
Financial assets at FVPL B7 210,678 B P
Asset for which fair values are disclosed:
Intangibles
Exchange trading nght 26,769,449 - -
Refimdable deposits - - 4,586,488
Exchange trading right

P33.980,127 E P4, 586 488

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no transfers among levels 1. 2
and 3 of fair value measurcments.

2,

Contingency

As at December 31, 2010, there is a pending case filed against the Parent Company

and Citisecurities, Ine., a related party, (the “Respondents”™) for trademark infringement by
Citigroup, Ine. and Citibank N. A, (the ‘Plaintiffs*), who have asked the court for an amount of
P8,000,000 for actual damages, P35,000,000 for exemplary damages and P3,973,000 for attorney’s
fees. The Parent Company holds the position that the parties are engaged in different lines of
business, i.e. Citigroup is in the banking and credit card business while the defendants are
stockbrokers.

Subsequently, the parties involved entered into a Compromise Agreement wherein the Plaintiffs
acknowledged the terms which the Respondents may use in Hong Kong Special Administrative
Regions. The Compromise Agreement was thereafter submitted to the court for approval.

Om November 11, 2011, the Parent Company received a copy of the Judgment, based on the
Compromise Agreement, dated October 7, 2011 issued by Branch 149 of the Regional Trial Court
of Makati City. Said Judgment quoted on the limits of the use of “CITI" by the Group in its

business.

On February 6. 2012, the court issued an Amended Judgment, inserting in said Judgment the
Whereas clauses of the Compromise Agreement. On March 8, 2012, the Amended Judgment
became final and executory.

On April 15, 2014, a Decision in favor of the Group was issued by the CT A granting the Group’s
Petition for the refund and/or issuance of TCC in the amount of 8,960,245, On May 8. 2014, the
Commissioner of [nternal Revenue (CIR) filed its Motion for Review which was later denied for
lack of merit in CTA’s Resolution dated June 2, 2014. On July 5, 2014, the CIR filed a Petition
for Review with the CT A En Banc requesting said Court to reconsider, reverse. and set aside the
Decision dated April 13, 2014 and Resolution dated June 2, 2014, The case is still pending with
the CTA En Bane as at March 4, 20135,
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24. EPS Computation

2014 2013 2012
Net income B262,267,060 PF303,589.893 P306.176.990
Weighted average number of shares for basic
camings per share 468,750,000  468.440,000  463.205.000
Dilutive shares arising from stock oplions 6,799,241 7,152,804 10,282,806
Adjusted weighted average number of shares
of common shares for diluted earnings per
share 475,549,241 475502804 475 487,806
Basic EPS P.56 P(.65 B0.66
Diluted EPS P0.55 P64 B0.64

25, Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on its geographical
location and has two (2) reportable segments as follows:

» Philippine segment, which pertains to the Group’s Philippine operations.
» Hong Kong segment, which pertains to the Group™s HK operations.

The following tables present certain information regarding the Group’s geographical segments:

2014
Fhilippines Hong kong Elimination Total

Kevenue from external customers:

Commissions F4064,6. 36, M5 F38, 754,036 - B303,390,041

Interest 203,128,988 1,235 - 203,130,223

Orthers 4,667 387 363,059 - 5,030,446
Initer-segneent reven 44, 717507 - {44, T17.50T) -
Segmenl revenue 717,149,887 39 118,330 (44, T17.507) 711,550,710
Cost of services (177,415,221) {16,472, 80°0) - (193,858, 0300
Operaling expenses {1340, 736,281) (35,549,692) 44,654,168 (161,631,805)
Depreciation and amortization (14,913,322) (133491} - (15,046,813}
Income (loss) belore income fax 374,085,103 (33,037,662) (63,339) 340,954, 62
Benefit from ( provision for) income tax (84,153, 246) 5,436,244 - (T8, 717,1M62)
MNet income !Iml EIS‘JE'HI.BI‘.? (F17.601.418) (P63.339) B262. 267,060
Segment aswets P59 455,641 P395,504839  (F138,555,738) P6.361.404,722
Segment liabilities 4.926,248,733 162,439,713 (3,736,756) 5,084,951,690
Capital expenditures:

Tamngible fixed azsets 12,023,627 85475 - 12,109,102
Cash Mows arising from:

Ohperating activities 1.711,%03,748 12,131,312 - 1,724,035, 0410

Investing activities (11,960,897) (85,475) — (12,046,372}

Financing activities {273, 2940, (HHN) - - (275, 2D, ANy
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2013
Philippines Hong Kong Eliminaticn Total

Revenue from extamal enstomers;

Commissions P4906.054 561 P44 467,085 o B540.521.047

[nterest 198,655,269 - - 198655269

Others 1,679.451 104,238 - 1,783 689
Inter-segment revene 42,891,145 - {42.891,145) -
Segment revenue T3S, 280,426 44,571,324 (42,891,145) 740,960,605
Cost of services (206,360,621) (17,323 409) (223 684,030)
Operalifg sXpenses (106,771 5600 (52,042,954} 42,655,273 (116,759,241)
Depreciation and amortization {14,332 560) (201,853) - {14.534,422)
Income {loss) before mmcome tax 411,815,676 [25,506,892) {235,872) 385,982,912
Benefit from {provision for) income tax {86,733,710) 4,340,710 = (82,393,019)
Met ineome {loss) P325.081.947 (P21,256,182) (P235.872) FEEISEQIEE??-
Sepment assets #4 318,785,171 #627,600,640 (B138 593 403) 84 807, TO2 AOR
Segment liahilities 3,340,514,99] 167,980,551 (3,722,642) 3.504,772,900
Capital expenditures

Tangble fixed assets 16,307, TaT - - 16,307,767
Cash flowes arising from:

Operating activities 827,420,780 103,733,789 - 931,154,569

[nvesting activities
Financing activilies

(16,307,767)
(294,409_500)

(16,307, 767)
£294.409, 500)
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